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PART | FINANCIAL INFORMATION
Item 1. Financial Statement

R ICK'S CABARET INTERNATIONAL, INC. AND SUBSIDIARES
CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS

ASSETS
MARCH 31, SEPTEMBEF
2009 30, 200€
(UNAUDITED)
CURRENT ASSETS
Cash and cash equivalel $ 5,330,820 $ 5,493,89:
Accounts receivabl
Trade, ne 877,39 629,13¢
Other, ne 227,03¢ 229,93(
Inventories 1,640,82: 1,683,19i
Prepaid expenses and other current a: 1,045,19 559,22:
Assets of discontinued operations 2,223,100 3,521,03
Total current asse 11,344,38 12,116,41
PROPERTY AND EQUIPMENT
Buildings, land and leasehold improveme 43,469,30 45,038,011
Furniture and equipment 13,478,25 11,058,01
56,947,56 56,096,02
Accumulated depreciation 8,950,54. 7,514,92;
Total property and equipment, r 47,997,02 48,581,10
OTHER ASSETS
Goodwill and indefinite lived intangible 74,751,52 74,703,17.
Definite lived intangibles, ne 1,041,55. 1,194,59:
Other 934,22! 473,52!
Total other assets 76,727,30 76,371,29
Total assets $ 136,068,70 $137,068,80

See accompanying notes to consolidated finanassients.




Table of Contents

R ICK'S CABARET INTERNATIONAL, INC. AND SUBSIDIARES

CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS

LIABILITIES AND STOCKHOLDERS' EQUITY

CURRENT LIABILITIES:
Accounts payabl- trade
Accrued liabilities
Current portion of lon-term deb
Liabilities of discontinued operations

Total current liabilities

Deferred tax liability

Other lon¢-term liabilities
Long-term debt, less current portir
Long-term debt - related parties

Total liabilities
COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES
MINORITY INTERESTS
TEMPORARY EQUITY- Common stock, subject to put rights (611,740 sh:

PERMANENT STOCKHOLDERS' EQUITY
Preferred stock, $.10 par, 1,000,000 shares agtthrinone issued and outstand
Common stock, $.01 par, 15,000,000 shares authihi®689,315 shares issu
Additional paic-in capital
Accumulated other comprehensive incc
Retained earning
Less 1,070,571 and 908,530 shares of common s&ldkrhtreasury, at cost, respectively

Total permanent stockholders’ equity

Total liabilities and stockholders’ equity

See accompanying notes to consolidated financgdsients.

MARCH 31,
2009
(UNAUDITED)

SEPTEMBEF

30,
2008

$ 901,46: $ 1,167,90!

3,666,00. 4,427,941
2,364,85! 2,644,54:
358,644 465,57
7,291,05: 8,705,96
17,139,57  16,616,30
589,88 537,96°
20,657,34  30,312,86
- 600,00
54.677,86  56,773,10
3,355,091 3,358,09
13,935,02  13,935,02
96,89: 96,89:
53,988,25  53,948,17
- (13,34
11,894,95  10,264,65
(1,879,36)  (1,293,78))
64,100,73 _ 63,002,58

$ 136,068,70 $137,068,80
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RICK'S CABARET INTERNATIONAL, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF INCOME

FOR THE THREE MONTHS FOR THE SIX MONTHS

ENDED MARCH 31, ENDED MARCH 31,
2009 2008 2009 2008
(UNAUDITED) (UNAUDITED)
Revenues
Sales of alcoholic beverag $ 6,955,900 $ 5,503,52¢ $ 13,522,73 $ 9,560,50;
Sales of food and merchand 1,566,82 1,296,19 2,979,801 2,335,29
Service revenue 8,758,73! 7,615,58: 16,859,72 12,598,38
Internet revenue 164,63: 172,71. 341,39 343,50:
Media revenue 285,33: - 468,96° -
Other 628,93: 505,01: 1,194,15. 998,06
Total revenue 18,360,36 15,093,03 35,366,78 25,835,75
Operating expense
Cost of goods sol 2,216,45 1,543,94. 4,424,112 2,823,98
Salaries and wagt 3,986,471 3,127,21! 8,148,16: 5,575,08:
Stock compensatic 20,04« 39,27( 40,08¢ 78,54(
Other general and administrati\
Taxes and permil 2,367,24: 1,900,75! 4,635,91. 3,078,97!
Charge card fee 446,94° 250,56! 781,63 446,98¢
Rent 845,82 516,67 1,707,18! 878,09¢
Legal and profession 810,50: 337,99 1,310,75! 629,63¢
Advertising and marketin 1,677,19 471,87 2,813,36' 748,02:
Insurance 265,90¢ 161,36! 503,38t 350,29¢
Utilities 371,12¢ 265,24 796,03 456,98t
Depreciation and amortizatic 814,27¢ 578,28: 1,615,65! 1,021,77.
Other 1,295,47. 1,171,56 2,677,711 2,057,44.
Total operating expenses 15,117,47 10,364,75 29,454,02 18,145,82
Operating incom: 3,242,88 4,728,27! 5,912,75 7,689,93
Other income (expense
Interest incom 1,65¢ 26,40: 7,39: 69,47:
Interest expens (808,83) (658,67 (1,636,30) (1,102,55)
Minority interests (73,500) - (147,000 177,91:
Income from continuing operations before income 2,362,21. 4,096,00! 4,136,84! 6,834,75
Income taxes 856,62! 1,241,96: 1,503,18! 1,932,39:
Income from continuing operations 1,505,58 2,854,04 2,633,65! 4,902,35!
Loss from discontinued operations, net of inconxesa (666,116 (248,66) (1,003,35)) (513,707
Net income $ 839,47 $ 2,605,381 $ 1,630,30: $ 4,388,65
Basic earnings per shal
Income from continuing operatiol $ 0.1¢ $ 0.3t $ 0.2¢ $ 0.6¢
Loss from discontinued operatio $ (0.07) $ (0.09 $ 0.11) $ (0.07)
Net income $ 0.0¢ $ 034 % 017 $ 0.61
Diluted earnings per shar
Income from continuing operatiol $ 0.1¢ $ 0.3t $ 0.2¢ $ 0.6%
Loss from discontinued operatio $ (0.0 $ (0.09) $ (0.11) $ (0.0¢)
Net income $ 0.0¢ $ 03z $ 017 $ 0.5¢
Weighted average number of common shares outsigr
Basic 9,313,81! 7,561,16: 9,339,92 7,183,69!
Diluted 9,487,52i 8,473,49 9,543,74. 8,012,74!

Comprehensive income for the three months endeatiMat, 2009 and 2008 was $839,471 and $2,594,2&¥ fa the six months we
$1,630,303 and $4,361,957, respectively. Thisighes the changes in available-for-sale securitids@t income.

See accompanying notes to consolidated finanassients.
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RIC K'S CABARET INTERNATIONAL, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOW

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES

Net income

Loss from discontinued operations, net of inconxesa
Income from continuing operatiol

Adjustments to reconcile net income to cash praYicle operating activities
Depreciation and amortizatic

Deferred taxe

Amortization of note discout

Beneficial conversiol

Minority interests

Deferred rent:

Common stock issued for interest paymn

Stock compensation exper

Other

Changes in operating assets and liabilities

Cash provided by operating activities of continuapgration:s
Cash used by operating activities of discontinugerations

Net cash provided by operating activit

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Proceeds from sale of prope

Additions to property and equipme

Acquisition of businesses, net of cash acqu

Payments from notes receivable

Cash used in investing activities of continuing ragiens
Cash used in investing activities of discontinupdrations

Net cash used in investing activiti

CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Proceeds from sale of common st

Proceeds from stock options exerci:

Proceeds from lor-term debt

Payments on lor-term debt

Purchase of treasury sto

Distribution to minority interests

Cash provided by (used in) financing activitiesohtinuing operations

NET INCREASE (DECREASE) IN CASI
CASH AT BEGINNING OF PERIOD

CASH AT END OF PERIOD

CASH PAID DURING PERIOD FOR
Interest

Income taxes

See accompanying notes to consolidated financgdsients.

FOR THE SIX MONTHS
ENDED MARCH 31,

2009 2008
(UNAUDITED)

$ 1,630,30. $ 4,388,65:

1,003,35: 513,70

2,633,65 4,902,35

1,615,65 1,021,77:

476 ,45: 158,26¢

- 17,77¢

11,38¢ 8,97¢

147,00 (177,91)

51,91 58,77¢

- 56,77

40,08¢ 78,54(

13,347 -

(1,563,76)) 537,56

3,425,74: 6,662,89.

(383,21) (207,57)

3,042,53; 6,455,31

- 36,00

(878,540  (1,709,65)

(48,35)  (18,235,14)

4,07¢ 63,99"

(922,81) ~ (19,844,80)

(602) (779,10:)

(923,41) ~ (20,623,91)

- 14,976,70

- 168,70(

- 2,000,001

(1,546,59)  (2,602,54)

(585,58¢) -

(150,000) -

(2,282,18) _ 14,542,85

(163,06¢) 374,26.

5,493,89: 2,915,53.

$ 5330,82 $ 3,289,790

$ 1,491,45 $ 1,038,27

$ 1655000 $ 565,98
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Non-cash transactions:

In March 2009, the Company sold 100% of the commsimtk of Texas S&l which owned and operated theoknters nightclub fq
$40,000, including a note for $35,000.

On November 30, 2007, the Company purchased TostSigbaret in Florida for $25,486,000 (which inclideventories and other asse
payable to the sellers $15,486,000 in cash, $100000pursuant to two secured promissory notes énatinount of $5,000,000 each, |
estimated transaction costs of $125,000.

In November 2007, the holder of a convertible délmenconverted $713,807 of principal and interestdinto 150,134 shares of restric
common stock.

In February 2008, the holder of a convertible déloenconverted $21,918 of interest owed into 1, &2#&res of restricted common stock.
In February 2008, the Company purchased an airtnaftigh the issuance of a note payable of $1,561,5

On March 31, 2008, in connection with the acquisitdf the remaining 49% of its Austin, Texas cltifie Company issued 35,000 comr
shares valued at $700,000.

On March 31, 2008, the Company purchased CrazyeHbo® Cabaret in Philadelphia for $7,985,000 payablthe Sellers $3,500,00C
cash and $4,485,000 pursuant to the issuance gdd®5Shares of restricted common stock.

See accompanying notes to consolidated finanassients.
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RICK'S C ABA RET INTERNATIONAL, INC. AND SUBSIDIARES
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
MARCH 31, 2009
(UNAUDITED)

1. BASIS OF PRESENTATION

The accompanying unaudited financial statement® Hmeen prepared in accordance with accounting iptésc generally accepted in
United States of America for interim financial infieation and with the instructions to Form 10-Q @fgRlation SX. They do not include ¢
information and footnotes required by accounting@ples generally accepted in the United StatesAwferica for complete financi
statements. However, except as disclosed hetene thas been no material change in the informatieciosed in the notes to the finan
statements for the year ended September 30, 2@0&led in the Company's Annual Report on FornKBR, as filed with the Securities €
Exchange Commission. The interim unaudited finainsiatements should be read in conjunction witds¢hfinancial statements includet
the Form 10KSB. In the opinion of management, all adjustmergssidered necessary for a fair presentation,istomg solely of norm:
recurring adjustments, have been made. Operatsgts for the three and six months ended Marcl28Q9 are not necessarily indicative
the results that may be expected for the year gn8eptember 30, 2009. Certain prior period amoimthie accompanying consolida
financial statements have been reclassified toaranfo the current presentation.

2. RECENT ACCOUNTING STANDARDS AND PRONOUNCEMENTS

In December 2007, the Financial Accounting StansldBdard (“FASB”)issued Statement of Financial Accounting Stand&tds 141R
“Business Combinations,” (“SFAS 141R"BFAS 141R requires most identifiable assets, ltgds| noncontrolling interests, and good
acquired in a business combination to be recortl&dldair value. The Statement applies to all imess combinations, including combinati
among mutual entities and combinations by contabmrie. Under SFAS 141R, all business combinatididw accounted for by applying t
acquisition method. SFAS 141R is effective for dilsgears beginning on or after December 15, 20@Bweill be effective for the Compa
beginning in fiscal 2010 for business combinatioosurring after the effective date.

In December 2007, the FASB issued Statement ofnEiah Accounting Standards No. 160Ndncontrolling Interests in Consolida
Financial Statements — an amendment of ARB No. 8EFAS 160").SFAS 160 will require noncontrolling interests {gorsly referred t
as minority interests) to be treated as a sepacatgonent of equity, not as a liability or oth@nit outside of permanent equity. The State!
applies to the accounting for noncontrolling intseand transactions with noncontrolling interedtlérs in consolidated financial stateme
SFAS 160 is effective for fiscal years beginningosrafter December 15, 2008 and is effective fer@ompany beginning in fiscal 2010.
Company does not expect that SFAS 160 will haveateral impact on its consolidated financial stagais.

In December 2006, the FASB issued Statement ofeinhAccounting Standards No. 157, “Fair Value Blgaments,” (“SFAS 157" 5FAS
157 clarifies the definition of fair value, des@# methods used to appropriately measure fair yvaod expands fair value disclos
requirements, but does not change existing guidascéo whether or not an instrument is carriedaat ¥alue. For financial assets
liabilities, SFAS 157 is effective for fiscal yedyeginning after November 15, 2007, which will requhe Company to adopt these provis
in fiscal 2009. For nonfinancial assets and liaib#i, SFAS 157 is effective for fiscal years begignafter November 15, 2008, which v
require the Company to adopt these provisionssicafi2010. In February 2007, the FASB issued Stateiof Financial Accounting Standa
No. 159,“The Fair Value Option for Financial Assets anddsinial Liabilities,” (“SFAS 159”")SFAS 159 provides companies with an og
to report selected assets and liabilities at falue. This statement contains financial statemesggntation and disclosure requirement:
assets and liabilities reported at fair value a®m@sequence of the election and is effective fer@mpany beginning in fiscal 2009. -
initial adoption of SFAS 157 did not have a mater&dfect on the Compang’ consolidated financial condition or results
operations. However, the Company is still in thecgss of evaluating this standard with respedtst@ffect on norfinancial assets a
liabilities and has not yet determined the imphaet it will have on the Comparg/financial statements upon full adoption. Thepdido of
SFAS 159 did not have a material effect on the Camyjs consolidated financial statements.
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RICK'S CABARET INTERNATIONAL, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
MARCH 31, 2009

2. RECENT ACCOUNTING STANDARDS AND PRONOUNCEMENTS - continued

The Staff of the Securities and Exchange Commisisisned Staff Accounting Bulletin ("SAB") 110 whigxpresses the views of the s
regarding the use of a "simplified" method, as uésed in SAB No. 107 ("SAB 107"), in developingestimate of expected term of "pl
vanilla" share options in accordance with Statenwérfinancial Accounting Standards No. 123 (revi2e@4), “Share-Based Paymeniti.
particular, the staff indicated in SAB 107 thatwiill accept a company's election to use the singalifmethod, regardless of whether
company has sufficient information to make morénexf estimates of expected term. At the time SAB Was issued, the staff believed

more detailed external information about employeer@se behavior (e.g., employee exercise patteynadustry and/or other categories
companies) would, over time, become readily avidldb companies. Therefore, the staff stated in SB that it would not expect
company to use the simplified method for shareooptirants after December 31, 2007. The staff utaeds that such detailed informat
about employee exercise behavior may not be widedjlable by December 31, 2007. Accordingly, thedfawill continue to accept, unc
certain circumstances, the use of the simplifiedhod beyond December 31, 2007. There were no ogtiants during the six months en
March 31, 2009.

3. STOCK OPTIONS AND STOCK-BASED EMPLOYEE COMPENSATION

Below is the summary of common stock options outditeg as of March 31, 2009:

Options Options Options Available fol
Employee and Director Stock Option Pl Authorized Outstanding  Vested Grant
1999 Stock Option Pla 1,500,001 420,00( 410,00( 438,00(

Employee and Director Stock Option Plans

In August 1999, the Company adopted the 1999 S@yjution Plan (“the Plan”).The options granted under the Plan may be eithoamitive
stock options or noqualified options. The Plan is administered by Board of Directors or by a compensation commitieéhe Board ¢
Directors. The Board of Directors has the exclegiower to select individuals to receive grantsdtablish the terms of the options gra
to each participant, provided that all options ¢edrnshall be granted at an exercise price equat keast 85% of the fair market value of
common stock covered by the option on the grare dat to make all determinations necessary or ableisinder the Plan. The options
subject to termination of employment and generelpire five years from the date of grant. Emplogpéons generally vest in installme
over two years. As of March 31, 2009, 438,000 shaf common stock were available for future gramider the Plan.

The compensation cost recognized for the six moattded March 31, 2009 and 2008 was $40,088 and4U8respectively. There we
zero and 40,000 stock options exercised for themgirths ended March 31, 2009 and 2008, respectivihgre were no stock options grar
for the six month periods ended March 31, 200920G8.
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RICK'S CABARET INTERNATIONAL, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
MARCH 31, 2009
3. STOCK OPTIONS AND STOCK-BASED EMPLOYEE COMPENSATION - continued
Sock Option Activity

The following is a summary of all stock option tsations for the six months ended March 31, 2009:

Weighted
Average
Weighted Remaining Aggregate
Average Contractual Intrinsic
Shares Exercise Pric  Term (years Value
Outstanding as of September 30, 2! 420,000 $ 3.8¢
Granted - -
Cancelled or expire - -
Exercised - -
Outstanding as of March 31, 2009 420,000 $ 3.8€ 75 $ 669,55(
Options exercisable as of March 31, 2009 410,000 $ 3.7¢ 68 $ 669,55(

4. GOODWILL AND OTHER INTANGIBLES

Following are the changes in the carrying amouhtpodwill and licenses for the six months endeddfe81, 2009 and 2008:

March 31, 200¢ March 31, 200¢
Licenses Goodwill Licenses Goodwill
Beginning balanc $ 39,298,34 $ 35404,83 $ 12,899,43 $ 5,525,65
Intangibles acquired - 48,35 23,919,09 10,136,70
Ending balance $ 39,298,34 $ 35453,18 $ 36,818,562 $ 15,662,35

5. LONG-TERM DEBT

During November 2008, $600,000 of related partyt selitured and was paid in cash by the Company. Gdrapany also made additio
payments of $946,597 on other long-term debt duttiegsix months ended March 31, 2009.

6. COMMON STOCK

During the six months ended March 31, 2009, the @omg purchased 162,041 shares of Company commak o its treasury at ¢
aggregate cost of $585,589.
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RICK'S CABARET INTERNATIONAL, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
MARCH 31, 2009

7. EARNINGS PER SHARE

The Company computes earnings per share in acamrdaith SFAS No. 128Earnings Per Share . SFAS No. 128 provides for t
calculation of basic and diluted earnings per sk{gfRS). Basic earnings per share includes noialliand is computed by dividing inco
available to common stockholders by the weightegtaye number of common shares outstanding foréheg Diluted earnings per sh
reflect the potential dilution of securities thautd share in the earnings of the Company. Patkeodmmon stock shares consist of share:
may arise from outstanding dilutive common stockrasats and options (the number of which is compuisidg the “treasury stock methgd”
and from outstanding convertible debentures (thmber of which is computed using the “if convertedthod”). Diluted EPS considers t
potential dilution that could occur if the Compasyutstanding common stock warrants and convertbleentures were converted i
common stock that then shared in the Compaegrnings (as adjusted for interest expensewtbald no longer occur if the debentures v
converted). Net earnings applicable to common stouk the weighted average number of shares used for basic and dikaetings pe
share computations are summarized in the tablddhatvs:

FOR THE THREE MONTHS
ENDED MARCH 31,

FOR THE SIX MONTHSE
ENDED MARCH 31,

2009 2008 2009 2008
Basic earnings per sha
Income from continuing operatiol $ 150558 $ 2,854,046 $ 2,633,650 $ 4,902,35
Loss from discontinued operations, net of inconxesa (666,116 (248,667 (1,003,35) (513,707
Net income $ 839,47 $ 2,60538 $ 1,630,30: $ 4,388,65
Average number of common shares outstanding 9,313,81! 7,561,16. 9,339,92! 7,183,69!
Basic earnings per share - income from continuiperations $ 0.1€ $ 03¢ $ 0.2¢ $ 0.6¢
Basic earnings per share - discontinued operations $ (0.07) $ (0.09) $ (0.17) $ (0.07)
Basic earnings per share - net income $ 0.0¢ $ 034 $ 0.17 $ 0.61
Diluted earnings per shar

Income from continuing operatiol $ 150558 $ 2,854,046 $ 2,633,650 $ 4,902,35
Adj. to net earnings from assumed conversion otdelres (1) - 87,48: - 125,10(
Adjusted income from continuing operatic 1,505,58 2,941,52! 2,633,65! 5,027,45!
Discontinued operations (666,116 (248,66 (1,003,35) (513,707
Adjusted net income $ 83947. $ 2,692,86. $ 1,630,30. $ 4,513,75
Average number of common shares outstanc
Common shares outstandi 9,313,81! 7,561,16: 9,339,921 7,183,69!
Potential dilutive shares resulting from exerciégarrants and options

2 173,70¢ 403,04° 203,81! 403,09:
Potential dilutive shares resulting from conversiéulebentures (3) - 509,28° - 425,95¢
Total average number of common shares outstandied for dilution 9,487,52 8,473,49 9,543,74. 8,012,74!
Diluted earnings per share - income from continuwpgrations $ 0.1¢ $ 0.3t $ 0.2¢ $ 0.6
Diluted earnings per share - discontinued operation $ (0.0 $ (0.09) $ (0.17) $ (0.0€)
Diluted earnings per share - net income $ 0.0¢ $ 03z $ 017 $ 0.5€

(1) Represents interest expense on dilutive caiderdebentures, that would not occur if they wassumed converted.
(2) All outstanding warrants and options were adered for the EPS computation.

(3) Convertible debentures (principal and accrusgrest) outstanding at March 31, 2009 and 2008lingt $886,276 and $3,088,0
respectively, were convertible into common stock @rice from$ 12.00 to $25.32 per share in 2009 and $3.00 to0®12er share in 20(
respectively, and resulted in additional commorrehgbased on average balances outstanding) in Z0@&ntial dilutive shares of 78,234
the six months ended March 31, 2008 have been@adlfrom earnings per share due to being antivddut

* Earnings per share may not foot due to rounding.
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RICK'S CABARET INTERNATIONAL, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
MARCH 31, 2009

8. ACQUISITIONS AND DISPOSITIONS

On November 30, 2007, the Company entered intooakSPurchase Agreement for the acquisition of 1@fi%he issued and outstand
common stock of Stellar Management Corporatioripada corporation (the "Stellar Stock") and 100%le issued and outstanding comr
stock of Miami Garden Square One, Inc., a Floridgoration (the "MGSO Stock") which owns and opesain adult entertainment cab
known as "Tootsie’s Cabaret" ("Tootss&) located at 150 NW 183rd Street, Miami Gardédtierida 33169 (the "Transaction™). Pursuar
the Stock Purchase Agreement, the Company acqthedbtellar Stock and the MGSO Stock from Normaokhtiore ("Hickmore™) an
Richard Stanton ("Stanton") for a total purchaseepof $25,486,000 (which includes inventory anHlentassets), payable to the se
$15,486,000 in cash, $10,000,000 pursuant to twarsd promissory notes in the amount of $5,000€4%¢h to Stanton and Hickmore (
"Notes"), plus estimated transaction costs of ¥10®, The Notes will bear interest at the rate &flger annum with the principal payable
one lump sum payment on November 30, 2010 (extetwlBidvember 30, 2012 in April 2009). Interest ba Notes will be payable montt
in arrears, with the first payment being due th{B89) days after the closing of the Transactiore Ttompany cannot pigay the Notes durir
the first twelve (12) months; thereafter, the Compaay prepay the Notes, in whole or in part, ptledi that (i) any prepayment by
Company from December 1, 2008 through November2809, shall be paid at a rate of 110% of the oabprincipal amount and (i) a
prepayment by the Company after November 30, 20@§, be prepaid without penalty at a rate of 100%heforiginal principal amount. T
Notes are secured by the Stellar Stock and MGS©kSinder a Pledge and Security Agreement. Asqfatie Transaction, Hickmore a
Stanton entered into fivgear covenants not to compete with the Companyitibaally, as part of the Transaction, the Compantered int
Assignment to Lease Agreements with the landlomrdtli@ property where Tootsi'is located. The underlying lease agreementshi
property provide for an original lease term througime 30, 2014, with two option periods which gile Company the right to lease
property through June 30, 2034. The terms anditiond of the transaction were the result of ext@narm's length negotiations between
parties.

The following information summarizes the allocatwfifair values assigned to the assets and lisgsilat the acquisition date.

Net current asse $ 390,00(
Property and equipment and other as 4,823,02
Non-compete agreeme 200,00(
Other asset 96,00(
Goodwill 7,044,05I
SOB license: 20,125,85
Deferred tax liability (7,044,05)
Net assets acquire $ 25,634,87

This acquisition was made to further the Compaytswvth objective of acquiring nightclubs that wdlliickly contribute to the Compary’
earnings per share. Goodwill in the acquisitiopresents the offset to the deferred tax liabilggarded as a result of the difference in
basis of the net assets for tax and financial mepo The results of operations of this acquiredtyeare included in the Comparyy’
consolidated results of operations since Decemp2007.

The following unaudited pro forma information pretgethe results of operations for the six monthdednMarch 31, 2008 as if the acquisi

had occurred as of the beginning of the immedia¢egaling period. The pro forma information is netessarily indicative of what wot
have occurred had the
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acquisition been made as of such periods, noriiglitative of future results of operations. Thie fporma amounts give effect to appropr
adjustments for the fair value of the assets aequamortization of intangibles and interest expens

For the Six

Months
Ended Marcl

31, 200¢
Revenue:! $ 28,802,40
Net income $ 4,732,337
Net income per shar- basic $ 0.64
Net income per shar diluted $ 0.57
Weighted average shares outstanc- basic 7,439,38
Weighted average shares outstanc- diluted 8,268,47!

On March 31, 2008, the Company’s wholly owned dilibsy, RCI Entertainment (Philadelphia), Inc. (tHeurchaser”)completed th
acquisition of 100% of the issued and outstandingress of common stock (the “TEZ Sharesf) The End Zone, Inc., a Pennsylve
corporation (the “Corporation”) which owns and cgtes “Crazy Horse Too Cabaret” (the “Clutddrated at 2908 South Columbus BI
Philadelphia, Pennsylvania 19148 (the “Real Prigpefrom Vincent Piazza (the “Seller”). As part the transaction, the Compasywholly
owned subsidiary, RCI Holdings, Inc. (“RCI Holdirigacquired from the Piazza Family Limited Partigps(the “Partnership Seller§1%
of the issued and outstanding partnership int€test“Partnership Interestsi) TEZ Real Estate, LP, a Pennsylvania limited ppenghip (th
“Partnership”) and 51% of the issued and outstapdirembership interest (the “Membership Interests”)TEZ Management, LLC,
Pennsylvania limited liability company, which isstheneral partner of the Partnership (the “Gerreaginer”). The Partnership owns the R
Property where the Club is located. At closingg @ompany paid a purchase price of $3,500,000 sh far the Partnership Interests
Membership Interests, and issued 195,000 shard®dfompany’s restricted common stock (the “Rickmres”valued at $23 per share
the TEZ Shares.

As part of the transaction, the Company entereal éntock-Up/Leakdut Agreement with the Seller pursuant to which corafter one yei
after the closing date, the Seller shall have ilety but not the obligation, to have Rick’s pursédrom Seller not more than 5,000 Rk’
Shares per month (the “Monthly Shares”), calculatd price per share equal to $23.00 (“Value efRlick’s Shares”). At the Compaiy’
election during any given month, the Company malyeeibuy the Monthly Shares or, if the Company tslewt to buy the Monthly Shai
from the Seller, then the Seller shall sell the MinShares in the open market. Any deficiencyeen the amount which the Seller rece
from the sale of the Monthly Shares and the Valuta® Rick’s Shares shall be paid by the Company within tf8gbusiness days of the d
of sale of the Monthly Shares during that particuteonth. The Compang’obligation to purchase the Monthly Shares from $leller sha
terminate and cease at such time as the Sellaehaied a total of $4,485,000 from the sale ofRiek’s Shares and any deficiency. A:
March 31, 2009, the 195,000 shares of restrictedneon stock were classified on the consolidatedro@lasheet as temporary equity
accordance with EITF Topic D-9&lassification and Measurement of Redeemable Securities . In April 2009, the Company renegotiated
terms of these and other put options. Under theteems, the Company has extended payback pefimdsred cash outlays and reducec
number of shares that can be put back to the Coynpan
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Additionally, at closing, the Seller and the Parsidp Seller entered into a fiweear agreement not to compete with the Companyirwd
twenty mile radius of the Club. Finally, the Coration entered

into a new lease agreement with the Partnershipgit the right to lease the Real Property forrityeyears (“Original Term”"with an optiol
for an additional nine years eleven months (“Opflamm”) with rent payable at the rate of (i) $50,000 pemthpsubject to adjustment
increases in the Consumer Price Index (CPI) eviey years during the Original Term and the Opticern, or (i) 8% of gross sale
whichever is higher. The maximum increase in tReé f0r any five year period shall be 15%.

The following information summarizes the allocatwfifair values assigned to the assets and lisdsilat the acquisition date.

Property and equipment and other as $ 3,882,88!
Non-compete agreeme 100,00(
Goodwill 1,458,58
SOB license: 4,207,771
Deferred tax liability 1,458,58)
Net assets acquire $ 8,190,65

Goodwill in the acquisition represents the offsethte deferred tax liability recorded as a restithe difference in the basis of the net as
for tax and financial purposes. The results ofrafens of this acquired entity are included in tiempany$s consolidated results
operations since March 31, 2008. This acquisiti@s made to further the Compasygrowth objective of acquiring nightclubs that|
quickly contribute to the Company’s earnings persh

Proforma results of operations have not been peakids the amounts were not deemed material twotheolidated financial statements.

On March 31, 2008, the Company’'s subsidiary, RCteBainment (Austin), Inc. (“RCI"),completed the acquisition of 49% of
membership interest of Playmates Gentlemen’s QILB, (“Playmates”) from Behzad Bahrami (“Sellerfgsulting in 100% ownership by 1
Company of RCI. Playmates owns an adult entertanincabaret known as “Playmates” (the “Clubdyated at 8110 Springdale Rc
Austin, Texas 78724 (the “PremisesUnder the terms of the Purchase Agreement, RCI aadidal purchase price of $1,401,711 which
paid $701,711 in cash and debt forgiveness atitiee @f closing and the issuance of 35,000 shar¢iseo€ompanys restricted common stc
valued at $20.00 per share (the “Shares”). Foowauting purposes, the Compasyhvestment is only $751,000, due to the previosses ¢
the minority interest which have been expenseds abquisition was made to give the Company coraptentrol over this entity. Therefao
the investment has been assigned to goodwill asfibeating license was acquired separately fronatigisition of the business.

Pursuant to the terms of the Purchase Agreementrafter one year after the closing date, theeBedhall have the right, but not
obligation to have the Company purchase from Seli¢more than 5,000 Shares per month (the “Mon#iiigres”) calculated at a price [
share equal to $20.00 (“Value of the Shares”)leBahall notify the Company during any given moofhits election to “Putthe Monthly
Shares to the Company during that particular moiththe Companys election during any given month, the Company migtyer buy th
Monthly Shares or, if the Company elects not to they Monthly Shares from the Seller, then the $ealkall sell the Monthly Shares in
open market. Any deficiency between the amountiwviiie Seller receives from the sale of the Mon8iigres and the Value of the Shares
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shall be paid by the Company within three (3) besindays of the date of sale of the Monthly Shdwemg that particular month. T
Companys obligation to purchase the Monthly Shares froeSkller shall terminate and cease at such tintleeaSeller has received a tota
$700,000 from the sale of the Shares. As of M&Lh2009, the 35,000 shares of restricted commuek stere classified on the consolide
balance sheet as temporary equity in accordandeBVitF Topic D-98 Classification and Measurement of Redeemable Securities. In April
2009, the Company renegotiated the terms of thedeother put options. Under the new terms, the o has extended payback peri
lowered cash outlays and reduced the number oéslibat can be put back to the Company.

In the event the Seller elects not to “Put” ther8hdo the Company, the Seller shall not sell nleaa 10,000 Shares during any @&y periot
in the open market, provided that Seller compliéh WRule 144 of the Securities Act of 1933, as adeeh) in connection with his sale of
Shares.

The full results of operations of this entity aneluded in the Company’s results of operationsesidarch 31, 2008.

In April 11, 2008, the Company’wholly owned subsidiary, RCI Entertainment (Dgllldnc., completed the acquisition of 100% of idsiel
and outstanding partnership interest (the "Partmgrénterest”) of Hotel Development Fexas, Ltd, a Texas limited partnership
"Partnership") and 100% of the issued and outstandiembership interest (the "Membership Interest'HD-Texas Management, LLC
Texas limited liability company, the general partakthe Partnership (the "General Partner") framdGolding, Kenneth Meyer, and Cha
McClure (the "Sellers"). The Partnership owns apérates an adult entertainment cabaret known as Extecutive Club" (the "Club’
located at 8550 North Stemmons Freeway, Dallasa3 6247 (the "Real Property"). As part of thegeantion, the Company'wholly ownei
subsidiary, RCI Holdings, Inc. ("RCI"), also aceqdrthe Real Property from DPC Holdings, LLC, a ®Bebmited liability company ("DPC"
At closing, the Company paid a total purchase pat&3,590,609 for the Partnership Interest and Wlenship Interest, which was p
through the issuance of 50,694 shares of the Companstricted common stock to each of Messrs. Gglditeyer and McClure, for
aggregate total of 152,082 shares (collectively,"Rick's Club Shares") to be valued at $23.30spare ($3,544,119) and $46,490 in casl
consideration for the purchase of the Real Prop&f@l paid total consideration of $5,599,721, whighs paid (i) $4,250,000, paya
$610,000 in cash and $3,640,000 through the isguaha five year promissory note (the "PromissooteN) and (ii) the issuance of 57,¢
shares of the Compargyrestricted common stock (the "Rick's Real Prgp8tares") to be valued at $23.30 per share ($1724% Thi
Promissory Note bears interest at a varying rateeagreater of (i) two percent (2%) above the BriRate or (ii) seven and ohedlf percer
(7.5%), and is guaranteed by Rick's and Eric Langatividually. At Closing, the Parties enteredoirsin Amendment to Purchase Agreer
solely to provide for the Sellers to set aside @0,Rick's Club Shares under an Escrow Agreementhiioffset of certain liabilities of t
Partnership. The Company also incurred costsarathount of $37,848, which was paid in cash.

At Closing, the Sellers entered into Lock-Up/Lealst Agreements pursuant to which on or after orer wdter the closing date, the Sel
shall have the right, but not the obligation to éa&ick's purchase from Sellers not more than ameagde of 3,621 Shares per month
"Monthly Club Shares"), calculated at a price pears equal to $25.00 per share ("Value of the Ri€{ub Shares") until each of -
individual Sellers has received a total of $1,26@0,3%om the sale of the Rick's Club Shares. At @wnpanys election during any givi
month, the Company may either buy the Monthly Cllfares or, if the Company elects not to buy thethlgrClub Shares from the Selle
then the Sellers shall sell the Monthly Club Shéamethe open market. Any deficiency between the amowhich the Sellers receive from
sale of the
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Monthly Club Shares and the Value of the Rick'sbChhares shall be paid by the Company within tfB¢éusiness days of the date of sa
the Monthly Club Shares during that particular nmonthe Company obligation to purchase the Monthly Club Sharesfthe Sellers shi
terminate and cease at such time as the Selleesreagived an aggregate total of $3,802,050 frarstie of the Rick's Club Shares and
deficiency.

Additionally, at Closing, DPC entered into a Lock/Ueak-Out Agreement pursuant to which on or after one péter the closing date, DI
shall have the right, but not the obligation to é&ick's purchase from DPC not more than 1,379e8haer month (the "Monthly Real Est
Shares"), calculated at a price per share equb25d00 per share ("Value of the Rick's Real Estatges") until DPC has received a tote
$1,447,950 from the sale of the Rick's Real Es3fi@res. At the Comparsgyklection during any given month, the Company either buy th
Monthly Real Estate Shares or, if the Company slact to buy the Monthly Real Estate Shares fron€PtRen DPC shall sell the Montl
Real Estate Shares in the open market. Any defigidretween the amount which DPC receives from #ie sf the Monthly Real Est¢
Shares and the Value of the Rick's Real EstateeStsdrall be paid by the Company within three (3ifess days of the date of sale of
Monthly Real Estate Shares during that particulanth. The Companyg’ obligation to purchase the Monthly Real Estatar&hfrom DP!
shall terminate and cease at such time as DPCebatved an aggregate total of $1,447,950 from dte af the Rick's Real Estate Shares
any deficiency. Finally, at Closing each of thel&sl entered a five year Ndbempetition Agreement with the Company pursuanwiich
they agreed not to compete with the Company ind3allounty or any adjacent county. In April 200 €ompany renegotiated the term
these and other put options. Under the new tetftmsCompany has extended payback periods, lowergtd autlays and reduced the nun
of shares that can be put back to the Company.S8ksequent Events footnote.

The following information summarizes the allocatiohfair values assigned to the assets and lisgsliat the acquisition date based «
preliminary valuation. Subsequent adjustments to@yecorded upon the completion of the valuatiod #re final determination of t
purchase price allocation.

Net current asse $ 34,44t
Property and equipment and other as 6,264,85!
Non-compete agreeme 300,00(
Goodwill 977,08
SOB license:! 2,640,76:
Deferred tax liability (977,08)
Net assets acquire $ 9,240,05!

Goodwill in the acquisition represents the offsethte deferred tax liability recorded as a restithe difference in the basis of the net as
for tax and financial purposes. The results ofrafiens of this entity are included in the Compangonsolidated results of operations s
April 11, 2008. This acquisition was made to furtttee Companys growth objective of acquiring nightclubs thatlwgliickly contribute to th
Companys earnings per share. Proforma results of op&atimve not been provided, as the amounts werelesnhed material to t
consolidated financial statements.

On June 18, 2008, the Company’s wholly owned sidnsidRCI Entertainment (Northwest Highway), Indagt“Purchaser”rompleted th
acquisition of certain assets (the “Purchased A8sef North by East Entertainment, Ltd., a Texiasited partnership (the “Sellery anc
through its general partner, Northeast PlatinumCLa Texas limited liability company (the “GenePRalrtner”’)pursuant to an Asset Purch
Agreement dated May 10, 2008. The Seller ownedopedated an adult entertainment cabaret
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known as “Platinum Club II” (the “Club”), located 40557 Wire Way (at Northwest Highway), Dallasx@e 75220 (the “Real Property”).

At closing, the Company paid a total purchase pat&1,500,000 cash for the Purchased Assets. I8diyy, the principal of the Sel
entered into a fiverear agreement not to compete with the Club byaipgr an establishment with an urban theme thdt betves liquor ar
provides live female nude or semi-nude adult eait@mient in Dallas County, Tarrant County, Texaamy of the adjacent counties thereto.

As part of the transaction, the Company’s whollyned subsidiary RCI Holdings, Inc. (“RCI§Iso acquired the Real Property from V
Way, LLC, a Texas limited liability company (“Wiré&/ay”). Pursuant to a Real Estate Purchase and Agdeement (the Real Estat
Agreement”)dated May 10, 2008, RCI paid total consideratio$&f000,000, which was paid $1,650,000 in cash%h850,000 through tl
issuance of a five (5) year promissory note (thefiissory Note”). The Promissory Note bears interest at a varying aathe greater of
two percent (2%) above the Prime Rate or (ii) seamh onehalf percent (7.5%), which is guaranteed by the gamy and by Eric Langan, 1
Company’s Chief Executive Officer, individually.h@& Company also incurred $77,599 in costs, which pead in cash.

The following information summarizes the allocatiohfair values assigned to the assets and lisgsliat the acquisition date based «
preliminary valuation. Subsequent adjustments to@yecorded upon the completion of the valuatiod #re final determination of t
purchase price allocation.

Net current asse $ 151,78
Property and equipment and other as 6,000,001
Non-compete agreeme 100,00(
Goodwill 1,410,57.
Other assets 43,50(
Net assets acquire $ 7,705,85

The main factor that contributes to goodwill in thensaction is the Compasyability to rebrand this operation as a Club Ottyyproduc
more revenues. The results of operations of thigtyeare included in the Comparsy’consolidated results of operations since Jun
2008. This acquisition was made to further the @amy’s growth objective of acquiring nightclubs that Iwguickly contribute to th
Company’s earnings per share.

Proforma results of operations have not been peakids the amounts were not deemed material twotheolidated financial statements.

On September 5, 2008, the Company’s wholly owndasisiary RCI Entertainment (Las Vegas), Inc. (tHeurchaser”)completed th
acquisition of certain assets (the “Purchased A¥sef DI Food & Beverage of Las Vegas, LLC, a Nevaidaited liability company (th
“Seller”) pursuant to a Third Amended Asset PusshAgreement (the “Third Amendment”) between Puseha

Rick’s Cabaret International, Inc. (“Rick’s”), Setl and Harold Danzig (“Danzig”), Frank Lovaas (Maas”) and Dennis DeGori (“DeGo)i”

who are all members of Seller. The Seller ownettl gerated an adult entertainment cabaret knowBS@ses” (the “Club”) located at 33&
Procyon Street, Las Vegas, Nevada 89102 (the “Rexglerty”).
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At Closing, Purchaser paid Seller an aggregate atramifollows (the “Purchase Price”):

() $12,000,000 payable by wire transfer;

(i) $3,000,000 pursuant to a promissory note (“the RiBkomissory Note”), executed by and obligatingks, bearing intere
at eight percent (8%) per annum with a five (5)ryaaortization, with monthly payments of princieadd interest, with tt
initial monthly payment due in April 2009 with alleeon payment of all then outstanding principal amigrest due upon t
expiration of two (2) years from the executiontod Rick's Promissory Note; and

(iii) 200,000 shares of restricted common stock, parev@u01 of Rick’s (the “Rick’s Sharesi9sued to the Seller, valuec
$13.77 per shar

As part of the transaction, the Company enterea antock-Up/Leakout Agreement with the Seller pursuant to whichporafter seven (
months after the closing date, the Seller shaletthae right, but not the obligation, to have Re&cgurchase from Seller a total of 150,000 o
Rick’s Shares (“Rick’s Put Share”) in an amount atch rate of not more than 6,250 of the Rick’'s Bhares per month (theMbnthly
Shares”) calculated at a price per share equa2®0® per share (“Value of the Rick's Shares”).tlh¢é Companys election during any giv:
month, the Company may either buy the Monthly Share if the Company elects not to buy the MontBhares from the Seller, then
Seller shall sell the Monthly Shares in the openketa Any deficiency between the amount which 8edler receives from the sale of
Monthly Shares and the Value of the Rel8hares shall be paid by us within three (3) lassirdays of the date of sale of the Monthly S
during that particular month. The Compangbligation to purchase the Monthly Shares frommSkller shall terminate and cease at such
as the Seller has received a total of $3,000,000 the sale of the Rick's Shares and any deficietdyder the terms of the Lock-Up/Leak-
Out Agreement, Seller may not sell more than 25R@&’'s Shares per 30- day period, regardless dadthdr the Seller “Puts” the RickPu
Shares to Ricls or sells them in the open market or otherwiseApril 2009, the Company renegotiated the termshefe and other
options. Under the new terms, the Company hasdgtepayback periods, lowered cash outlays andceelihe number of shares that ca
put back to the Company. See Subsequent Everttsoteo

Upon closing of the transaction, the Company edtaaetwo-year Non-Compete Agreement with DeGori (tBeGori NonCompeti
Agreement”)pursuant to which DeGori agreed not to compete @ighClub by operating an establishment servingolicand providing liv
female nude or senmiude adult entertainment in Clark County, Nevaden @r radius of 25 miles of Clark County, Nevadaivided, howeve
that the Noncompetition Agreement specifically excluded thetRense Club and the Bada Bing Club located in Clzokinty, Nevada. TI
Company agreed to pay DeGori cash consideratidd66f667 for entering into the Nd@empetition Agreement. Additionally, at Closi
the Company also entered into a 12-month Consukgigement with DeGori (the “Consulting Agreemerit) a total aggregate of $133,:
in consulting fees payable in eighteen (18) equahtimy payments of $7,407.38 per month with thestfipayment due October .
2008. Upon closing of the transaction, the Compamiered a one-year Non-Compete Agreement with &®\he “Lovaas No&ompet
Agreement”)pursuant to which Lovaas agreed not to compete thighClub by operating an establishment servingolicand providing liv
female nude or semi-nude adult entertainment imkGZounty, Nevada, or any of its surrounding coesitiprovided, however, that this Non-
Competition Agreement shall specifically exclude Benthouse Club and the Bada Bing Club locat&lark County, Nevada. The Compi
incurred $367,580 in costs in connection with tbguasition.
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The following information summarizes the allocatiohfair values assigned to the assets and lisgsliat the acquisition date based «

preliminary valuation. Subsequent adjustments to@yecorded upon the completion of the valuatiod #re final determination of t
purchase price allocation.

Net current asse $ 112,88!
Property and equipment and other as 1,953,06!
Non-compete agreeme 100,00(
Goodwill 16,022,09
Net assets acquire $ 18,188,24

The main factor that contributes to goodwill in thensaction is the Company’s ability to rebrand tiperation as a Rick’Cabaret to produ
more revenues. The results of operations of thiuiaed entity are included in the Companyonsolidated results of operations s
September 5, 2008. This acquisition was maderntbduthe Companyg’ growth objective of acquiring nightclubs thatlwgliickly contribute
to the Company’s earnings per share.

The following unaudited pro forma information pretsethe results of operations as if the acquisitiad occurred as of the beginning of
immediate preceding period. The pro forma infororais not necessarily indicative of what would @axccurred had the acquisition b
made as of such periods, nor is it indicative dfife results of operations. The pro forma amogius effect to appropriate adjustments

the fair value of the assets acquired, amortizatfdntangibles and interest expense.

For the Thre: For the Six

Months Months
Ended Marct Ended Marct

31, 200¢€ 31, 200¢€
Revenue: $ 20,482,96 $ 35,304,28
Net income $ 3,155,200 $ 5,156,52.
Net income per shar- basic $ 037 $ 0.64
Net income per shar- diluted $ 034 $ 0.5¢
Weighted average shares outstant- basic 8,433,16. 8,055,69!
Weighted average shares outstanc- diluted 9,345,49 8,884,74!

17




Table of Contents

RICK'S CABARET INTERNATIONAL, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
MARCH 31, 2009

8. ACQUISITIONS AND DISPOSITIONS - continued

The following unaudited pro forma information pretethe results of as if the acquisitions of Mig&ardens Square One, Inc. and DI F
and Beverage of Las Vegas, LLC had occurred ash@fbeginning of the immediate preceding periode Ppho forma information is n
necessarily indicative of what would have occured the acquisition been made as of such periagsisnt indicative of future results
operations. The pro forma amounts give effectporapriate adjustments for the fair value of theets acquired, amortization of intangit
and interest expense.

For the Thre: For the Six

Months Months
Ended Marct Ended Marct

31, 200¢€ 31, 200¢€
Revenue: $ 20,482,96 $ 38,270,93
Net income $ 3,155,200 $ 5,500,241
Net income per sha- basic $ 037 $ 0.6€
Net income per shar- diluted $ 034 % 0.61
Weighted average shares outstant- basic 8,433,16: 8,311,38
Weighted average shares outstanc- diluted 9,345,49 9,140,47

Media Acquisitions

On April 15, 2008, the Compars/wholly owned subsidiary, RCI Entertainment (MeHdialdings), Inc., a Texas corporation ("RCI Medi
acquired 100% of the issued and outstanding constak (the "ED Stock") of ED Publications, Inc.Texas corporation ("ED"), 100%
the issued and outstanding common stock (the "TE&®@EK™) of TEEZE International, Inc., a Delawargporation ("TEEZE") and 100%
the issued and outstanding membership interest'lleenbership Interest") of Adult Store Buyers Maige, LLC, a Georgia limited liabili
company.

ED Publications, Inc.

Under the terms of a Purchase Agreement betweenVidaitt ("Waitt"), RCI Media and Rick's Cabaret Imational, Inc. ("Rick's") date
April 15, 2008 (the "ED Purchase Agreement"), tr@mpany agreed to pay Waitt the following considerafor the purchase of the |
Stock:

(i) $300,000 cash at closing;

(i) $200,000 cash payable in 6 months (paid); and
(iii) The issuance of 8,696 shares of restrictethitmn stock valued at $23.00 per share (the "CloSimayes").
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Additionally, during the three (3) year period flling the Closing Date (the "Earn Out Period"), Wahall be entitled to earn additio
consideration (the "Additional Consideration") qf to $2,000,000 (the "Maximum Amount") consisting$500,000 cash (the “Cashanc
65,217 shares of restricted common stock value®2at00 per share (the "Earn Out Shares"), based tihgo earnings before income 1
depreciation and amortization ("EBITDA") of RCI MadRCI Media will pay the Maximum Amount of the ditional Consideration to tl
Seller if RCI Media's EBITDA during the three (3¢ar period following the Closing Date totals anragate of $2,400,000. At the enc
each twelve (12) month period after the ClosingeD&CI| Media shall determine its EBITDA and shallygo Waitt any such portion of t
Additional Consideration as has been earned. Theil@ Shares and Earn Out Shares are collectieédyred to as the "Rick's Shares".

At Closing, Waitt entered into a Lock-Up/Le&kit Agreement with the Company pursuant to whiclooafter one year after the closing ¢
with respect to the Closing Shares, or on or a&sen (7) months from the date of issuance witheesto the Earn Out Shares, if any, W
shall have the right, but not the obligation to davith respect to the Earn Out Shares, if any, ¥gaill have the right, but not the obliga
to have Rick's purchase from Waitt 5,000 Rick'sr&hg@er month (the "Monthly Shares"), calculated atice per share equal to $23.00
share ("Value of the Rick's Shares") until Waits maceived an aggregate of $1,700,000 (i) fronstie of the Rick's Shares sold in the ¢
market or in a private transaction or otherwisel @ the payment of any deficiency (as definedhia ED Purchase Agreement) by Rick's
the Companys election during any given month, the Company midlyer buy the Monthly Shares or, if the Compargct not to buy tt
Monthly Shares from Waitt, then Waitt shall selétMonthly Shares in the open market. Any deficiebeyween the amount which Wi
receives from the sale of the Monthly Shares ardhlue of the Rick's Shares shall be paid by the@any within three (3) business day
the date of sale of the Monthly Shares during freaticular month. The Comparsybbligation to purchase the Monthly Shares fromith
shall terminate and cease at such time as Waittrdw@sived an aggregate total of $1,700,000 fromstde of the Rick's Shares and
deficiency (as defined in the ED Purchase Agreejnent

At Closing, Waitt also entered a three (3) year Bxyyimpent Agreement with RCI Media (the "Employmergréement") pursuant to which
will serve as President. The Employment Agreemeterels through April 15, 2011, and provides foraamual base salary of $250,C
Pursuant to the Employment Agreement, Mr. Waitlgo eligible to participate in all benefit plansintained by the Company for salal
employees. Under the terms of the Employment AgesgnMr. Waitt is bound to a confidentiality prowis and cannot compete with

Company upon the expiration of the Employment Agreet.

TEEZE/Adult Store Buyers Magazine LLC

Under the terms of a Purchase Agreement between Qoinnetta ("Cornetta”), Waitt, RCl Media and Récklated April 15, 2008 (tl
"TEEZE/ASB Purchase Agreement”), the Company agtequhy the following consideration to Cornetta afditt for the purchase of t
TEEZE Stock and the Membership Interest:

0] an aggregate of $200,000 cash at closing;
(i) the issuance of 6,522 shares of restricted comnomk $0 each of Messrs. Waitt and Cornetta, forggregate of 13,044 sha
of restricted common stock to be valued at $23&Gshare (the "Rick's TEEZE Share:

Pursuant to the TEEZE/ASB Purchase Agreement, @fter one year after the closing date, each ofskéedVaitt and Cornetta shall have

right, but not the obligation to have Rick's pumhahe Rick's TEEZE Shares calculated at a pricahmee equal to $23.00 per share ("V
of the
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8. ACQUISITIONS AND DISPOSITIONS - continued

Rick's TEEZE Shares") until Messrs. Waitt and Cttenbave each received $150,000 (i) from the shlbeRick's TEEZE Shares sold
them, regardless of whether sold to Rick's, soldhimm open market or in a private transaction oewtise, and (ii) the payment of ¢
deficiency (as defined in the TEEZE/ASB Purchasee&gent) by Rick's. At the Compasyelection during any given month, the Comg
may either buy the Rick's TEEZE Shares or, if tlen@any elects not to buy the Rick's TEEZE Shabhes) Cornetta and/or Waitt shall ¢
the Rick's TEEZE Shares in the open market. Anjciafcy between the amount which Cornetta or Waiteives from the sale of the Ric
TEEZE Shares and the Value of the Rick's TEEZE &hsahall be paid by the Company within three (3jress days of the date of sale of
Rick's TEEZE Shares during that particular montfie Tompanys obligation to purchase the Rick's TEEZE Sharel gfrminate and cea
at such time as Waitt and Cornetta have each redéi®50,000 from the sale of the Rick's TEEZE Sharel any deficiency. In April 20(
the Company renegotiated the terms of Mr. Waittid ather put options. Mr. Wais’put options were converted to two notes aggreg
$350,000, with monthly payments aggregating $15,8%uding interest at 4% through April 2011.

At Closing, Cornetta entered a five year Nbompetition Agreement with the Company pursuamwliich he agreed not to compete with
Company either directly or indirectly with TEEZE,SB, RCI Media, Rick's or any of their affiliates lpyblishing any sexually orient
industry trade print publications, with the exceptof a publication known as "Xcitement" which igently owned and operated by Corne

The following information summarizes the initialaation of fair values assigned to the assetdliabilities at the acquisition date based «
preliminary valuation for the ED Publications, IncAdult Store Buyers Magazine LLC, and TEEZE In&dional, Inc
acquisitions. Subsequent adjustments may be redardon the completion of the valuation and thalf@etermination of the purchase p
allocation.

Net current asse $ 469,37
Non-compete agreeme 100,00(
Goodwill 567,12!
Net current liabilities (66,749
Net assets acquire $ 1,069,75

The results of operations of these entities aridted in the Compang’results of operations since April 15, 2008. Tddquisition was ma
to create new marketing synergies with major inguptroduct suppliers and new national advertisipgartunities and also provides
Company with additional diversification of revenaied income streams while remaining within the Comyfmcore competency. The abi
to create additional cash flows from the marketigigergies is the main factor contributing to godbiwithe transaction.

Proforma results of operations have not been peakids the amounts were not deemed material twotheolidated financial statements.
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9. INCOME TAXES
Income tax expense for the periods presented diffem the “expectedfederal income tax expense computed by applyindtig feder:

statutory rate of 34% to earnings before incomedaincluding discontinued operations, for the éhaad six months ended March 31,
result of the following:

For the Three Month For the Six Month:
Ended March 31 Ended March 31

2009 2008 2009 2008
Computed expected tax expel $ 454,69 $ 1,262,557 $ 881,69° $ 2,055,122
State income taxe 29,78¢ 111,40: 67,18 181,33:
Stock option disqualifying dispositions and otpermanent difference 13,37¢ (44,550) 14,04: (312,676
Net operating loss carryforwar - (284,495 - (284,495
Effect of rate increase on deferred tax liability - 63,13t - 16,50
Total income tax expense $ 497,850 $ 1,108,06c $ 962,92 $ 1,655,78

Included in the Compang’deferred tax liabilities at March 31, 2009 is mpgmately $13,800,000 representing the tax eftddindefinite
lived intangible assets from club acquisitions whare not deductible for tax purposes. These dEfetax liabilities will remain in tr
Company’s balance sheet until the related clubsalc

10. DISCONTINUED OPERATIONS
The accompanying financial statements reflect tfiewing as discontinued operations as of andliergeriod ended March 31, 2009.

The Company sold one of its nightclubs, EncouniteiSan Antonio, on March 1, 2009 for $40,000, idohg $5,000 in cash and a $35,
note payable monthly for one year. The Companggeized an impairment of $221,563 for this clubiniyithe quarter ended December
2008. The actual loss at date of sale was $226,175

The Company also has put its RigkCabaret nightclub in Austin, Texas up for sald aanrrently has a contract for sale of the cluk
$2,000,000, including $700,000 in cash and ayear-$1.3 million note. The sale has not closedfdke filing of this report. The Compe
recognized an impairment of the net assets ofltheaf $823,090 as of March 31, 2009, recognizetthénconsolidated statement of incom
loss from sale of discontinued operations.
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10. DISCONTINUED OPERATIONS - continued

Following is summarized information regarding thd&eontinued operations:

Three Months Ende Six Months Ende:
March 31, March 31,
2009 2008 2009 2008

Rick's Austin:

Loss from discontinued operatio $ (177969 $ (336,660 $ (426,90) $ (699,75)

Loss on sale of discontinued operatir (823,090 - (823,090 -

Income tax benef- discontinued operatior 350,42 117,83 437,49° 244,91
Encounters, San Antoni

Loss from discontinued operatio (23,829 (45,899 (67,457 (90,56¢)

Loss on sale of discontinued operatir - - (226,179 -

Income tax - discontinued operations 8,34( 16,06 102,77( 31,69¢
Total loss from discontinued operations, net obme taxes $ (666,110 $ (248,66) $ (1,003,35) $ (513,70
Major classes of assets and liabilities includedss®ts and liabilities of discontinued operatansf:

September
March 31, 30,
2009 2008

Rick's Austin:

Current assel $ 74,99C $ 117,85:

Property and equipme 1,126,26. 1,212,12

Other asset 1,021,84 1,862,43

Current liabilities (80,699 (166,885

Long-term liabilities (277,959 (277,959

Net assets $ 1,864,45 $ 2,747,57
Encounters, San Antoni

Current asset $ - $ 42,58¢

Property and equipme - 245,03!

Other asset - 41,00(

Current liabilities - (20,737

Net assets $ - $ 307,88.
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11. SEGMENT INFORMATION

Below is the financial information related to therffpany’s segments:

Business segment sali
Night clubs
Other

Business segment operating incol
Night clubs
Other
General corporate

Business segment capital expenditu
Night clubs
Other
General corporate

Business segment depreciation and amortiza
Night clubs
Other
General corporate

23

Three Months Ende

Six Months Ende

March 31, March 31,

2009 2008 2009 2008
$ 1790159 $ 14,90554 $ 34,549,52 $ 25,468,22
458,76: 187,48’ 817,26 367,53:
$ 18,360,36 $ 15,093,03 $ 35,366,78 $ 25,835,75
$ 4,261,995 $ 546998 $ 7,849,84° $ 9,144,46,
(15,740 27,70 (179,409 53,64t
(1,003,33) (769,41)) (1,757,68) (1,508,17)
$ 324288 $ 4,728,270 $ 5,912,75. $ 7,689,93
$ 226,98¢ $ 4,826,020 $ 823,18( $ 10,176,99
3,60( 1,94¢ 3,60( 1,94¢
46,32« 1,770,32 72,51°F 1,797,47.
$ 276,91: $ 6,598,30. $ 899,29! $ 11,976,41
$ 619,31: $ 504,78t $ 1,226,19° $ 875,19:
8,421 5,46¢ 17,00¢ 10,93:
186,53¢ 68,02¢ 372,45¢ 135,65
$ 814,27¢ $ 578,28. $ 1,615,651 $ 1,021,77:
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12. COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES
Sexually Oriented Business Ordinance of Houston, kas

In 1997, the City of Houston passed a comprehensewe ordinance regulating the location of and tbaduct within sexually orient
businesses (the “Ordinanceiyhich became the subject of litigation which affeatir Sexually Oriented Business licenses in Hoyskexas
After extensive litigation, the Trial Court in Haos rendered its judgment in favor of the City afudton in January, 2007. After a leng
series of court battles, the Fifth Circuit CoufritAppeals ruled in favor of the City of Houston$eptember 2007. Despite efforts for fur
appeal, the United States Supreme Court refuskdanthe matter.

Additionally, on behalf of three of our club loaatis in Houston, we filed state court lawsuits segkudicial review of the results of t
amortization process contained within the Ordinansethe conclusion of the trial for this mattére Court ruled that the amortization aw:
were proper and requested that findings of fact @mtlusions of law be submitted to the Court ai a® a judgment in the case. A ¢
sought by the clubs during the appeal was denkeda result, we, as well as every other similailyaged sexually oriented business loc
within the incorporated area of Houston, Texas,diteer ceased providing nude or semide entertainment or developed alternate methk
operating. We have already taken steps to clotineentertainers in a manner to eliminate the needidenses and not to be subject to
Ordinance. Approximately 7.0% of our club opematorevenues for the six months ended March 31, 2398 in Houston, Texas and th
clubs lost approximately 0.9% of the Company’s inedbefore taxes for that period.

Other Legal Matters

Beginning January 1, 2008, our Texas clubs becained to a new state law requiring each club ttecband pay a $5 surcharge for e\
club visitor. A lawsuit was filed by the Texas Erntinment Association, an organization to whichasre a member, alleging the fee amo
to be an unconstitutional tax. On March 28, 2@G08tate District Court Judge in Travis County, Bexded that the new state law violates
First Amendment to the United States Constitutind & therefore invalid. The judges’order enjoined the State from collecting or asine
the tax. The State has appealed the Cosntuling. In Texas, when cities or the State gietice of appeal, it supersedes and suspen
judgment, including the injunction. Therefore, fhdgment of the District Court cannot be enforcedil the appeals are completed. Gi
the suspension of the judgment, the State has aptedllect the tax pending the outcome of its @bpdhe Texas Third Court of Appe
heard oral argument in this case on February 119 2@wever no decision is expected in the immediature. In the meantime, we havaic
the tax for the first four calendar quarters unaetest and expensed the tax in the accompanymagdial statements, except for two locat
in Dallas where the taxes have not been paid, lutame accruing and expensing the liability. Then@anys Texas clubs have filec
separate lawsuit against the State to demand repa#yof the taxes. On April 3, 2009, the Company watified that the Texas legislat
processed a bill to replace the Patron Tax wit@% 1ax calculated on admission fees. The billfessed the House and, as of May 5, 2
has gone to the Senate for confirmation. If pastedlCompanys current amount paid under protest would be appliuture admission ti
and other Texas state tax liabilities.

For all the above legal matters, no contingentriesefor liabilities have been recorded in the agganying consolidated balance shee
such potential losses are not deemed probabldiorasde.
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13. SUBSEQUENT EVENTS

On April 29, 2009, the Company entered into a miodgliion to its two secured promissory notes with tbrmer owners of Tootsig'Cabare
in Miami Gardens, Florida, whereby the due datetf@ $5 million of principal due and payable by iempany under each note
aggregate of $10 million) was extended by two ydassn November 2010 to November 2012. All othemte and conditions of tl
promissory notes remain the same. The Companyqusy issued these notes in November 2007 todhmdr owners of Tootsis’Cabare
in connection with a purchase agreement for thét adbaret.

The Company, in April and May 2009, also has retiatg a portion of its outstanding put optionsduge the financing of some rec
acquisitions. The Company entered into variouse@ments that amend provisions of agreements thmp@&ay previously enter
into. Pursuant to the terms of these amended mgmts, the Company has extended payback periadisced the number of shares that
be put back to the Company and reduced cash odtayise next twelve months.

Specifically, the Company has entered into theofelhg agreements:

The Company entered into an Amendment to Purchageefent (the “Amended Austin Agreementiith Behzad Bahrami,
connection with Compang’previous acquisition of an adult entertainmebiacet in Austin, Texas. The Amended Austin Agrest
extends and revises the terms under which Mr. Bahnas the right to require the Company purchasg@icemonthly amounts of tl
35,000 shares of common stock previously issuédrtdBahrami as payment for the acquisition. Punsda the original agreeme
Mr. Bahrami had the right to require the Companpuochase up to 5,000 shares per month on orld#iech 31, 2009 at a purch:
price of $20 per share. The Amended Austin Agregmevised these terms so that Mr. Bahrami nowthasright to require tt
Company purchase shares at the rate of 2,500 sparesonth from March 31, 2009 until he has rec£i$@00,000 from the sale
the shares

The Company entered into a Fourth Amendment to Hasee Agreement and an Amendment to Lock-Up/L@ak-Agreemer
(collectively the “Amended Philadelphia Agreementaith Vincent Piazza and other related parties;annection with Compang’
previous acquisition of an adult entertainment cabim Philadelphia, Pennsylvania. The Amendedaékiphia Agreements exte
and revise the terms under which Mr. Piazza hasitfint to require the Company purchase certain mgragmounts of the 195,0
shares of common stock previously issued to MrzRiaas payment for the acquisition. Pursuant ¢odtiginal agreement, b
Piazza had the right to require the Company tolmase up to 5,000 shares per month on or after M2tcR009 at a purchase pi
of $23 per share. The Amended Philadelphia Agre¢meevised these terms so that Mr. Piazza nowth®sight to require tt
Company purchase shares at the rate of 3,000 sparesonth from March 31, 2009 until March 31, 2040d at the rate of 5,0
shares per month thereafter until he has receidet%$,000 from the sale of the shal

The Company entered into a Fourth Amendment toAtbeet Purchase Agreement and an Amendment to thk-Up/LeakOut
Agreement (collectively the “Amended Las Vegas Agnents”) with DI Food and Beverage of Las VegasCl(the “DIFB”) anc
other related parties, in connection with Comparmrevious acquisition of an adult entertainmeiiacat in Las Vegas, Nevada. -
Amended Las Vegas Agreements extend and revis¢ethes under which DIFB has the right to require @@mpany purcha
certain monthly amounts of the 150,000 shares ahmoon stock previously issued to DIFB as partial megt for thi
acquisition. Pursuant to the original agreemeifEBohad the right to require the Company purchaséous,250 shares per month
or after April 8, 2009 at a purchase price of $20
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13. SUBSEQUENT EVENTS - continued

share. The Amended Las Vegas Agreements revigse tterms so that DIFB now has the right to regiiieeCompany purcha
shares until DIFB has received $3,000,000 fronstie of the shares at the following rates:

from April 5, 2009 until May 4, 2009, up to a totdl15,000 share:!

from May 5, 2009 until November 5, 2009 at a r&t8,000 shares per mont
from November 5, 2009 until May 4, 2010 at a rétd,000 shares per mont
from May 5, 2010 until November 4, 2010 at a r&t6,000 shares per month; a
from November 5, 2010 until October 4, 2011 atte td 6,000 shares per mon

O O0OO0OO0Oo

« The Company renegotiated the terms of its purchgseements with the former owners of ED Publicajoreeze and Adult Stc
Buyer publications. The new agreement with the farrowner of ED Publications provides for the ex&mutof a $200,00
promissory note payable over two years with inteets4% per annum in lieu of the issuance of 8,6Béres. The Compa
simultaneously purchased 6,522 shares that had issaed in connection with the Teeze transactionm®ans of a $150,0
promissory note payable over two years with intea&d% per annun

« The Company entered into a Second Amendment tohBsiecAgreement (the “Amended Dallas Agreemenith Jerry Goldinc
Kenneth Meyer, Charles McClure and DPC HoldingsCl.la Texas limited liability company (“DPC”)n connection with th
Company’s previous acquisition of the “Executivaulgl an adult entertainment cabaret in Dallas, Texd®e Amended Dall
Agreement extends and revises the terms under whadsrs. Golding, Meyer and McClure and DPC haeeripht to require tt
Company to purchase certain monthly amounts o000 shares of common stock previously issuéleim, in the aggregate,
connection with the acquisition. Pursuant to thigioal agreement, Messrs. Golding, Meyer and Me€land DPC had the right
require the Company to purchase, in the aggregptén 5,000 shares per month on or after April2009 at a purchase price of ¢
per share. The Amended Dallas Agreement revisesktterms so that Messrs. Golding, Meyer and MeGind DPC now have t
right to require the Company to purchase shargbgemggregate, at the rate of 3,000 shares pethnfrmm April 11, 2009 until Apr
10, 2010, at the rate of 6,000 shares per month f&pril 11, 2010 until April 10, 2012, and thereaftat the rate of 5,000 shares
month. Pursuant to the terms of the Amended D&@llgrieement the Company agreed to pledge as calla@rMessrs. Goldin
Meyer and McClure and to DPC a second lien onehéproperty where the Executive Club is loca

26




Table of Contents
Item 2. Ma nage ment'’s Discussion and Analysis ofirancial Condition and Results of Operations.

The following discussion should be read in conjiorctvith our audited consolidated financial statetseand related notes thereto include
this quarterly report.

FORWARD LOOKING STATEMENT AND INFORMATION

The Company is including the following cautionatgtement in this Form 1Q-to make applicable and take advantage of the safieo
provision of the Private Securities Litigation Refo Act of 1995 for any forwartboking statements made by, or on behalf of,
Company. Forwardboking statements include statements concerniagsplobjectives, goals, strategies, future evenysedormance ar
underlying assumptions and other statements, waiiehother than statements of historical facts.talferstatements in this Form ID-are
forward-looking statements. Words such as "expettglieves,” "anticipates,"rhay,” and "estimates” and similar expressionsraended t
identify forwardiooking statements. Such statements are subjetsk® and uncertainties that could cause actualtseto differ materiall
from those projected. Such risks and uncertairgtiesset forth below. The Company's expectatibakefs and projections are expresse
good faith and are believed by the Company to leakeasonable basis, including without limitatiorgmagement's examination of histor
operating trends, data contained in the Compamgerds and other data available from third partieg, there can be no assurance
management's expectation, beliefs or projectionls nesult, be achieved, or be accomplished. Initamd to other factors and matt
discussed elsewhere herein, the following are itamoifactors that, in the view of the Company, dothuse material adverse effects or
Company's financial condition and results of operast the risks and uncertainties relating to outerinet operations, the impact
implementation of the sexually oriented businesinances in the jurisdictions where our facilitegserate, competitive factors, the timing
the openings of other clubs, the availability ofteutable financing to fund corporate expansion reffoand the dependence on

personnel. The Company has no obligation to updatevise these forwardoking statements to reflect the occurrence dairitevents ¢
circumstances.

GENERAL
We operate in three businesses in the adult eirteréat industry:

1. We own and/or operate upscale adult nightclubsimsgrprimarily businessmen and professionals. Oghteiubs offer live adu
entertainment and restaurant and bar operatiohsou@h our subsidiaries, we currently own and/crafe a total of eighteen ac
nightclubs that offer live adult entertainment aedtaurant and bar operations. Seven of our dplesate under the name "Ric
Cabaret"; four operate under the name “Club Onwgscale venues that welcome all customers but especially to urbe
professionals, businessmen and professional ashléte clubs operate under the name "XTC Cabaraté club that operated
“Encounters” closed in January 2009 and was soldanch 2009, one club operates as “Tootsie’s” anel club operates aPivas
Latinas” formerly an Onyx). Our nightclubs are in Houstonysin, San Antonio, Dallas and Fort Worth, Texakafbtte, Nort|
Carolina; Minneapolis, Minnesota; New York, New ¥pMiami Gardens, Florida; Philadelphia, Pennsylsaand Las Vega
Nevada. No sexual contact is permitted at anyuoiacations

2. We have Internet activitie

a) We currently own two adult Internet membership Witles at www.CoupleTouch.com and www.xxxpassword.cave
acquire xxxpassword.com site content from wholese

b) We operate an online auction site www.NaughtyBigis.cThis site provides our customers with the opputy to purchas

adult products and services in an auction format. &lrn revenues by charging fees for each transactinducted on tl
automated site
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3. In April 2008, we acquired a media division, indiugl the leading trade magazine serving the nhillien dollar adult nightcluk
industry. As part of the transaction we also aalittvo industry trade shows, two other industrddraublications and more than
industry websites

Our nightclub revenues are derived from the saldiqufor, beer, wine, food, merchandise, cover caafgnembership fees, indepeni
contractors' fees, commissions from vending and Amilchines, valet parking and other products andicgs. Our Internet revenues
derived from subscriptions to adult content Inténwebsites, traffic/referral revenues, and commissiearned on the sale of products
services through Internet auction sites, and atledivities. Media revenues include sale of adviaigisontent and revenues from an an
Expo convention. Our fiscal year end is Septen3er

For several years, we have greatly reduced oureushgromotional pricing for membership fees for adult entertainment web sites. 1
reduced our revenues from these web sites.

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The preparation of financial statements in conftymaiith accounting principles generally acceptedhia United States of America requ
management to make estimates and assumptionsftbat eertain reported amounts in the financiatesteents and accompanying na
Estimates and assumptions are based on histosparience, forecasted future events and variousrahsumptions that we believe tc
reasonable under the circumstances. Estimatessandhations may vary under different assumptiorsoaditions. We evaluate our estimg
and assumptions on an ongoing basis. We believadbeunting policies below are critical in the payal of our financial condition al
results of operations.

Accounts and Notes Receivable

Trade accounts receivable for the nightclub openais primarily comprised of credit card chargebjol are generally converted to cas
two to five days after a purchase is made. Theiandiglision’s accounts receivable is primarily comprised oénembles for advertising sa
and Expo registration. The Compasyiccounts receivable, other is comprised of eng@l@dvances and other miscellaneous receivable
longterm portion of notes receivable are included imeotassets in the accompanying consolidated bakimaets. The Company recogn
interest income on notes receivable based on thestef the agreement and based upon managesraraluation that the notes receivable
interest income will be collected. The Company ggires allowances for doubtful accounts or notesnylbased on management judgn
circumstances indicate that accounts or notesvaiske will not be collected.

Inventories

Inventories include alcoholic beverages, food, @uinpany merchandise. Inventories are carried atover of cost, average cost, wh
approximates actual cost determined on a firstirist-out (“FIFO”) basis, or market.

Property and Equipment

Property and equipment are stated at cost. Prowidior depreciation and amortization are made ustrajghtline rates over the estima
useful lives of the related assets and the shofteseful lives or terms of the applicable leasmsléasehold improvements. Buildings h
estimated useful lives ranging from 31 to 40 yeBtsniture, equipment and leasehold improvemenie leatimated useful lives between:
and ten years. Expenditures for major renewals laeitierments that extend the useful lives are diggth Expenditures for norn
maintenance and repairs are expensed as incutneccokt of assets sold or abandoned and the relatednulated depreciation are elimini
from the accounts and any gains or losses are etlasg credited in the accompanying consolidatetbistant of income of the respect
period.
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Goodwill and Intangible Assets

In June 2001, the FASB issued SFAS No. X@@dwill and Other Intangibles Assets, which addresses the accounting for goodwill atteb
intangible assets. Under SFAS No. 142, goodwill atahgible assets with indefinite lives are nogenamortized, but reviewed on an ani
basis for impairment. All of the Compasygoodwill and intangible assets relate to the taigh segment, except for $567,000 related t
media segment. Definite lived intangible asseésanortized on a straiglite basis over their estimated lives. Fully anzed assets a
written-off against accumulated amortization.

Impairment of LoneglLived Assets

The Company reviews property and equipment anchgilide assets with definite lives for impairment emever events or changes
circumstances indicate the carrying amount of aetamay not be recoverable. Recoverability of tlessets is measured by comparison
carrying amounts to future undiscounted cash fltvesassets are expected to generate. If propettye@nipment and intangible assets
definite lives are considered to be impaired, tn@dirment to be recognized equals the amount bygwtiie carrying value of the as
exceeds its fair value. Assets are grouped ataivest level for which there are identifiable cdkiws when assessing impairment. C
flows for our club assets are identified at thevittlal club level. The Compang’annual evaluation was performed as of Septenthe2(®8
based on a projected discounted cash flow mething @sdiscount rate determined by management twohbemensurate with the risk inher
in the current business model. The Company deteuintinat there is no goodwill impairment at Septen3e 2008.

Revenue Recognition

The Company recognizes revenue from the sale ohalic beverages, food and merchandise, other tmsand services at the pointsatle
upon receipt of cash, check, or credit card charge.

The Company recognizes revenue for VIP membershigeccordance with Staff Accounting Bulletin No.41@Revenue Recognition, by
deferring membership revenue and recognizing dweestimated membership usage period. Managenténaéss that the weighted aver
useful lives for memberships are 12 and 24 montdrsahnual and lifetime memberships, respectivelge TTompany does not tre
membership usage by type of membership, howevdrlieves these lives are appropriate and conseeyaliased on management’
knowledge of its client base and membership usatealubs.

The Company recognizes Internet revenue from mypmhibscriptions to its online entertainment sitégem notification of a new or existi
subscription and its related fee are received fioethird party hosting company or from the crexditd company, usually two to three d
after the transaction has occurred. The monthlyiderot refundable. The Company recognizes Inteanetion revenue when paymen
received from the credit card as revenues are emed estimable nor collection deemed probable frithat point.

Revenues from the sale of magazines and advertisintent are recognized when the issue is publiginedshipped. Revenues and exte
expenses related to the Company’s annual Expo otioveare recognized upon the completion of theveation in August.

Sales and Liguor Taxes

The Company recognizes sales and liquor taxesgsaidvenues and an equal expense in accordanc&MEh06-3,How Taxes Collected
from Customers and Remitted to Governmental Authorities Should Be Presented in the Income Statement . Total sales and liquor taxes
aggregated $2,147,290 and $1,680,187 for the sitmended March 31, 2009 and 2008, respectively.
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Advertising and Marketing

Advertising and marketing expenses are primariljngosed of costs related to public advertisements giveaways, which are used
promotional purposes. Advertising and marketing emges are expensed as incurred and are includexperating expenses in !
accompanying consolidated statements of income.

Income Taxes

Deferred income taxes are determined using thditiamethod in accordance with SFAS No. 1@gcounting for Income Taxes . Deferre(
tax assets and liabilities are recognized for titeré tax consequences attributable to differetstween the financial statement carn
amounts of existing assets and liabilities andrthespective tax bases. Deferred tax assets dpitities are measured using enacted tax
expected to apply to taxable income in the yeanstiith those temporary differences are expectdoktoecovered or settled. The effec
deferred tax assets and liabilities of a changevirrates is recognized in income in the period ihaudes the enactment date. In additic
valuation allowance is established to reduce arfigroz tax asset for which it is determined thad itnore likely than not that some portior
the deferred tax asset will not be realized.

In June 2006, the FASB issued Interpretation Ng.A&ounting for Uncertainty in Income Taxes, atetpretation of FASB Statement |
109, Accounting for Income Taxes (FIN 48), to cecatsingle model to address accounting for unceytén tax positions. FIN 48 clarifies t
accounting for income taxes by prescribing a mimimmecognition threshold a tax position is requitedneet before being recognized in
financial statements. FIN 48 also provides guidantéerecognition, measurement, classificatiorrest and penalties, accounting in inte
periods, disclosure and transition. FIN 48 is dffecfor fiscal years beginning after December 28)6. The Company has adopted FIN 4
of October 1, 2007, as required. The adoption Idf #8 has had no effect on the Company's conseitléihancial position, results
operations or cash flows. There are no unrecogneetenefits to disclose in the notes to the clifsied financial statements.

Put Options

In certain situations, the Company issues resttictemmon shares as partial consideration for aitgpms of certain businesses
assets. Pursuant to the terms and conditionseofytiverning acquisition agreements, the holderushsshares has the right, but not
obligation, to put a fixed number of the sharesaomonthly basis back to the Company at a fixedeppier share. The Company may ¢
during any given month to either buy the monthlarsls or, if management elects not to do so, théenalan sell the monthly shares in
open market, and any deficiency between the amwhith the holder receives from the sale of the mignéhares and the value of shares
be paid by the Company. The Company has accotintédese shares in accordance with the guidanebleshed by EITF Topic @8 as
reclassification of the value of the shares fromm@ment to temporary equity. As the shares beatunee the Company transfers the valu
the shares back to permanent equity, less any arpaidchto the holder.

Stock Options

Effective October 1, 2006, the Company adopteddirevalue recognition provisions of SFAS No. 123Rare-Based Payments , using thi
modified prospective application method.
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The compensation cost recognized for the six moaitited March 31, 2009 and 2008 was $40,088 an® 47 8respectively. There were
stock options exercises for the six months endectiMal, 2009.

RESULTS OF OPERATIONS FOR THE THREE MONTHS ENDED MA RCH 31, 2009 AS COMPARED TO THE THREE
MONTHS ENDED MARCH 31, 2008

For the three months ended March 31, 2009, we badatidated total revenues of $18,360,361 comparembnsolidated total revenues
$15,093,032 for the three months ended March 3@8.28n increase of $3,267,329 or 21.6%. The iseréa total revenues was prima
attributable to the increase in revenues geneiaecr new media division and new clubs in DallBsxas (2), Philadelphia, Pennsylva
and Las Vegas, Nevada, in the amount of $4 millidrotal revenues for same-location-sapegiod of club continuing operations decre:
6.9% to $13,883,987 for the three months ended IVatc 2009 from $14,905,545 for the same periocgéndarch 31, 2008.

Income taxes, as a percentage of income befores tavas 36.3% and 30.3% for the quarters ended M&ith2009 and 200
respectively. The increase in 2009 is due to #ok Iof significant permanent difference deduction2009 compared to 2008, princips
related to exercised stock options and also tanttreased significance of state taxes in 2009.

The decrease in net income was primarily due to itleeease in expenses detailed above and lossesirimew operations in L
Vegas. Income before income taxes (exclusiveogbarate overhead) for same-location-sgreded of club continuing operations decre:
to $3,796,594 for the three months ended Marct2829 from $5,505,632 for same period ended Mar¢t28@8, or by 31.0%.

Following is a comparison of the Compasyncome statement for the quarters ended MarcB@19 and 2008 with percentages compar

total revenue:

2009 % 2008 %

Sales of alcoholic beverag $ 6,955,90. 37.% $ 5,503,52! 36.5%
Sales of food and merchand 1,566,82 8.5% 1,296,19 8.€%
Service Revenue 8,758,73! 47.1% 7,615,58: 50.5%
Internet Revenue 164,63: 0.€% 172,71. 1.1%
Media 285,33: 1.€% - 0.C%
Other 628,93: 3.4% 505,01: 3.3%

Total Revenue 18,360,36 100.%  15,093,03 100.(%
Cost of Goods Sol 2,216,45 12.1% 1,543,94. 10.2%
Salaries & Wage 3,986,471 21.1% 3,127,21! 20.7%
Stock Base Compensati 20,04+ 0.1% 39,27( 0.2%
Taxes and permil 2,367,241 12.% 1,900,75! 12.€%
Credit card fee 446,94 2.4% 250,56! 1.7%
Rent 845,82! 4.€% 516,67 3.4%
Legal & professiona 810,50: 4.4% 337,99: 2.2%
Advertising and marketin 1,677,19 9.1% 471,87 3.1%
Insurance 265,90¢ 1.4% 161,36! 1.1%
Utilities 371,12¢ 2.C% 265,24« 1.8%
Depreciation and amortizatic 814,27¢ 4.4% 578,28: 3.8%
Other 1,295,47. 7.1% 1,171,56 7.8%
Total operating expenses 15,117,47 82.2%  10,364,75 68.7%

Income from continuing operatio 3,242,88 17.7% 4,728,271 31.2%
Interest incomt 1,65¢ 0.C% 26,40: 0.2%
Interest expens (808,83 -4.4% (658,677 -4.4%
Minority interests (73,500 -0.4% - 0.C%
Income from continuing operations before income$ax $ 2,362,21. 12.¢% $ 4,096,00! 27.1%
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Following is an explanation of significant variasda the above amounts.

Other revenues include ATM commissions earned,oviglames and other vending and certain promotiosrdbarged to our entertainers.
Company recognizes revenue from other revenueseamites at the point-of-sale upon receipt of cabbgk, or credit card charge.

Cost of goods sold includes cost of alcoholic and-@coholic beverages, food, cigars and cigaretteschandise, media printing/bindil
media postage and internet traffic purchases armnaster payouts. The increase in the cost of gsoldisas a percentage of revenues fo
three months ended March 31, 2009 was due primatilywo factors: (1) the addition of several newohlalselling clubs and their relat
cost of goods which is significantly higher as acpatage of revenues compared to the cost of sélibe XTC clubs which are BYOB, a
(2) the addition of the media division which hakigher cost of sales than club operations. Thé @bgoods sold for the club operations
the three months ended March 31, 2009 was 12.4%aad to 10.3% for the three months ended Marct2328. The cost of goods s
from our internet operations for the three monthdeel March 31, 2009 was 1.6% compared to 1.5%hfithree months ended March
2008. The cost of goods sold from our media opmratfor the three months ended March 31, 200928268%. The cost of goods sold
same-location-samgeriod of club continuing operations for the threenths ended March 31, 2009 was 12.3%, comparé@.8% for th
same period ended March 31, 2008.

The increase in payroll and related costs, statetiSalaries & Wagesabove, was primarily due to the addition of the ngubs. Th
increase in percentage to total revenues is prtlgiplue to the new clubs in Dallas and Philadelplhich had significantly higher mana
payrolls and also the addition of a general managel a manager in Miami and the change to salgrégdonnel for maintenance
landscaping in Miami from an outsourced compamBayroll for same-location-sanperiod of club continuing operations decrease
$2,530,276 for the three months ended March 319 Zaim $2,607,026 for the same period ended Mafdch2B08. Management currer
believes that its labor and management staff lemesappropriate.

Taxes and permits consists principally of payrales, property taxes, sales and alcohol taxesisi@seand permits and the patron tax ir
nightclubs in Texas.
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The increase in the percentage of advertising aadketing to total revenue is principally due to #ulition of our new club in Las Vegas
its marketing campaign.

The increase in the percentage to revenues oftaadl fees relates to increased chargebacks feotaie credit card companies in 2009.
Rent expense increased principally due to significew leases in Las Vegas and Philadelphia.
The increase in legal and professional expensarisipally due to contesting of labor lawsuits inrilesota and New York.

The increase in interest expense was attributabéeit obtaining new debt during the year endede®elpér 30, 2008 to finance the purct
of the new clubs and related real estate. As atM&1, 2009, the balance of loterm debt was $32,022,198 compared to $24,737,3&%a
earlier.

The significant change in minority interests is daethe purchase, effective March 31, 2008, of rfr@aining 49% of our Austin Rick’
Cabaret location and the purchase, effective theesday, of 51% of the partnership owning the retdte for our Philadelphia location.

Losses, before income taxes, at clubs losing mdoeyng the quarter ended March 31, 2009 exceedéf,800, compared to $1.9 million
the quarter ended December 31, 2008. The significasing club was Ricls' Cabaret in Las Vegas. During the quarter endssk®ber 3.
2008, the significant losing clubs included REl Las Vegas, Dallas, Philadelphia and Club OnyRallas. Subsequent to December
2008, the Company took the following steps to reyrledses in certain clubs:

The Rick's Cabaret in Dallas lost $323,000 before incomesaduring the quarter ended December 31, 2008arinary 2009, we conver
the location to XTC Cabaret Dallas. Early resalts very encouraging. This location, as XTC Daltaade a $46,000 profit for the qua
ended March 31, 2009 and we expect ongoing priofitisis location although there can be no assurance

The Rick's Cabaret in Austin lost $240,000 before incomegaduring the quarter ended December 31, 2008 [Bhation is current
scheduled to close its sale and is included inotisicued operations in the accompanying consoliistatements of income.

The Rick’s Cabaret in Philadelphia lost $276,000 beforermedaxes during the quarter ended December 31,. 20@8have converted t
location to Club Onyx Philadelphia in January 2@®@ the club made a profit of $216,000 for the taragnded March 31, 2009. We exj
continued profitability in 2009 going forward altingh there can be no assurance.

Club Onyx Dallas did not have a liquor license dgrthe quarter ended December 31, 2008 until Deeehb2008 and lost $188,000 bet
income taxes during the quarter. This location enagrofit of $66,000 for the quarter ended Marth2)09, and we expect ongoing prc
in this location, of which there can be no assuganc

Rick’'s Cabaret Las Vegas lost approximately $633,000reéficome taxes for the quarter ended March 309 20Due to the economy in L
Vegas, we expect to continue to lose money atidlestion until the Las Vegas economy improves,\beithave made expense reductions
modifications to our marketing campaign in thisdtion subsequent to March 31, 2009 and we haveas&ge improvement in operation:
March and April.

The accompanying financial statements reflect tflewing as discontinued operations as of andliergeriod ended March 31, 2009.
The Company sold one of its nightclubs, EncouniterSan Antonio, on March 1, 2009 for $40,000, iniahg $5,000 in cash and a $35,

note payable monthly for one year. The Companggeized an impairment of $221,563 for this clubinyithe quarter ended December
2008. The actual loss at date of sale was $226,175
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The Company also has put its RiskCabaret nightclub in Austin, Texas up for sald aorrently has a contract for sale of the cluk
$2,000,000, including $700,000 in cash and ayesr-$1.3 million note. The sale has not closedfdke filing of this report. The Compe
recognized an impairment of the net assets ofltieaf $823,090 as of March 31, 2009, recognizetthénconsolidated statement of incom
loss from sale of discontinued operations.

Following is summarized information regarding thd&eontinued operations:
Three Months Ende Six Months Ende:

March 31, March 31,
2009 2008 2009 2008

Rick's Austin:
Loss from discontinued operatio
Loss on sale of discontinued operati
Income tax benef- discontinued operatior
Encounters, San Antoni

$ (177,969 (426,90

$

$
Loss from discontinued operatio $ (23,829

$ -

$

(823,09() (823,09()

$ (336,660 $ $

$ - $ $

350,42 $ 117,830 $ 437,49 $ 244911
$ $ $
$ $ $

(699,75:)

(45,899 (67,459 (90,56%)
Loss on sale of discontinued operati

Income tax- discontinued operatior

- (226,17Y) -
834C $ 16,06 $ 10277( $ 31,69

RESULTS OF OPERATIONS FOR THE SIX MONTHS ENDED MARCH 31, 2009 AS COMPARED TO THE SIX MONTHS
ENDED MARCH 31, 2008

For the six months ended March 31, 2009, we haddlmated total revenues of $35,366,781 comparecbisolidated total revenues
$25,835,755 for the six months ended March 31, 2@@8increase of $9,531,026 or 36.9%. The incr@adetal revenues was primal
attributable to the increase in revenues genetayeaur new media division and new clubs in Miamir@ans, Florida, two clubs in Dalli
Texas, Philadelphia, Pennsylvania, and Las Vegesadla, in the amount of $10.3 million. Total rewes for same-location-sanperiod o
club continuing operations decreased to $16,488@8the six months ended March 31, 2009 from $04,822 for same period ended Me
31, 2008, a 4.7% decrease. Same-location-gmried information for the six months does not i@ our club in Miami Gardens, althot
that club is included in the information for thegh month periods ended March 31, 2009 and 2008.

Income taxes, as a percentage of income befores taas 36.3% and 28.3% for the six months ended M&t, 2009 and 20C
respectively. The increase in 2009 is due to #uok bf significant permanent differences in 2008npared to 2008, principally related
exercised stock options and also to the increagedifisance of state taxes in 2009.

The decrease in net income was primarily due toiticeease in expenses detailed above and lossesirimew operations in Dall:
Philadelphia and Las Vegas. Income before inctames (exclusive of corporate overhead) for samation-sameperiod of club continuin
operations decreased to $3,401,910 for the six Insoeded March 31, 2009 from $5,027,998 for samegended March 31, 2008, or
32.3%.

Following is a comparison of the Compasmyicome statement for the six months ended Mat¢t2@09 and 2008 with percentages comg
to total revenue:
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%

2008

%

2009

Sales of alcoholic beverag $ 13,522,73
Sales of food and merchand 2,979,801
Service Revenue 16,859,722
Internet Revenue 341,39
Media 468,96
Other 1,194,15.

Total Revenue 35,366,78
Cost of Goods Sol 4,424,121
Salaries & Wage 8,148,16:
Stock Base Compensati 40,08¢
Taxes and permi 4,635,91.
Credit card fee 781,63¢
Rent 1,707,18!
Legal & professiona 1,310,75!
Advertising and marketin 2,813,36'
Insurance 503,38!
Utilities 796,03
Depreciation and amortizatic 1,615,65!
Other 2,677,71
Total operating expenses 29,454,02

Income from continuing operatiol 5,912,75:
Interest incom 7,39:
Interest expens (1,636,30)
Minority interests (247,000
Income from continuing operations before income$ax $ 4,136,84

Following is an explanation of significant variasda the above amounts.

38.2% $ 9,560,50.

8.4%
47.1%
1.C%
1.2%
3.4%

100.(%

12.5%
23.(%
0.1%
13.1%
2.2%
4.€%
3.7™%
8.C%
1.4%
2.3%
4.€%
7.€%

83.2%
16.7%

0.C%
-4.€%
-0.4%

2,335,29
12,598,38
343,50

998,06

25,835,75

2,823,98I
5,575,08.
78,54(
3,078,97!
446,98
878,09¢
629,63¢
748,02:
350,29¢
456,98t
1,021,77.

18,145,82

7,689,93I

69,47:
(1,102,55()
177,91

11.7% $ 6,834,75

37.(%
9.C%
48.8%
1.3%
0.C%
3.8%
100.(%

10.%
21.€%
0.2%
11.9%
1.7%
3.4%
2.4%
2.5%
1.4%
1.8%
4.C%
8.C%

70.2%
29.8%

0.2%

-4.2%
0.7%

26.5%

Other revenues include ATM commissions earned,ovglames and other vending and certain promotiahidearged to our entertainers.

Cost of goods sold includes cost of alcoholic and-@coholic beverages, food, cigars and cigaretteschandise, media printing/bindil
media postage and internet traffic purchases afuaster payouts. The increase in the cost of gsoldisas a percentage of revenues fa
six months ended March 31, 2009 was due primatdytwo factors: (1) the addition of several newohlal-selling clubs and their related c
of goods which is significantly higher as a pereget of revenues compared to the cost of saleedfTI€ clubs which are BYOB, and (2)
addition of the media division which has a highestof sales than club operations. The cost oflg@mld for the club continuing operati
for the six months ended March 31, 2009 was 12.6%pared to 11.0% for the six months ended March2B08. The cost of goods s
from our internet operations for the six months eshd/arch 31, 2009 was 1.7% compared to 3.1% forstkenonths ended March
2008. The cost of goods sold from our media opmratfor the six months ended March 31, 2009 wad%8 The cost of goods sold
same-location-samgeriod of continuing club operations for the sixnttts ended March 31, 2009 was 12.0%, compared .84 for the

same period ended March 31, 2008.
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The increase in payroll and related costs, stagetiSalaries & Wagesabove, was primarily due to the addition of the ngubs. Th
increase in percentage to total revenues is prtlgiplue to the new clubs in Dallas and Philadedplhich had significantly higher mana
payrolls and also the addition of a general manager a manager in Miami and the change to salgr@donnel for maintenance
landscaping in Miami from an outsourced compamayroll for same-location-sanperiod of club operations decreased to $3,409,60tht
six months ended March 31, 2009 from $3,495,054Hersame period ended March 31, 2008anagement currently believes that its le
and management staff levels are appropriate.

The increase in the percentage of taxes and petaritdal revenues is principally due to the pati@nin Texas which was not in effect dur
the quarter ended December 31, 2007.

The increase in the percentage to revenues oftaadl fees relates to increased chargebacks feotaie credit card companies in 2009.

The increase in the percentage of advertising aatketing to total revenue is principally due to #ulition of our new club in Las Vegas
its marketing campaign.

Rent expense increased principally due to significew leases in Las Vegas and Philadelphia.
The increase in legal and professional expenserisipally due to contesting of labor lawsuits inriesota and New York.

Depreciation and amortization amounted to $1,615f66 the six months ended March 31, 2009. Theemse of approximately $594,(
from the six months ended March 31, 2008 is du¢h® new clubs purchased in 2008. Maintenance alapitpenditures amounted
$268,000 for the same six months. We anticipatedkpreciation will exceed maintenance capitakegitures for the year ending Septen
30, 2009 by approximately $2.5 million.

The increase in interest expense was attributabteit obtaining new debt during the year endede®elpér 30, 2008 to finance the purct
of the new clubs and related real estate. As atha&1, 2009, the balance of loterm debt was $32,022,198 compared to $24,737,1/8%
earlier.

The significant change in minority interests is daethe purchase, effective March 31, 2008, of rfr@aining 49% of our Austin Rick’
Cabaret location and the purchase, effective thresday, of 51% of the partnership owning the retdte for our Philadelphia location.

Losses, before income taxes, at clubs losing mdnewyg the six months ended March 31, 2009 exce&@egimillion. The significant losir
club was Rick’s Cabaret in Las Vegas. During thiarter ended December 31, 2008, the significanihdoslubs included Ricle in Las
Vegas, Dallas, Philadelphia and Club Onyx in Dall&@sibsequent to December 31, 2008, the Comparyth@ofollowing steps to reme
losses in certain clubs:

The Rick’s Cabaret in Dallas (converted to XTC Cabaret muday 2009) lost $366,000 before income taxes duttie six months end

March 31, 2009. Early results of theaencept in Dallas are very encouraging. This locatas XTC Dallas, made a $46,000 profit for
quarter ended March 31, 2009 and we expect ongwinfis in this location although there can be esuaance.
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The Rick's Cabaret in Austin lost $427,000 before incomegaduring the six months ended March 31, 2009s Tdtation is current
scheduled to close its sale and is included inogiicued operations in the accompanying consoliistatements of income.

The Rick’s Cabaret in Philadelphia (converted to Club Omydanuary 2009) lost $60,000 before income taxeésglthe six months end
March 31, 2009. The club made a profit of $216,80{0the quarter ended March 31, 2009. We expewtimoed profitability in 2009 goir
forward although there can be no assurance.

Club Onyx Dallas did not have a liquor license dgrthe quarter ended December 2008 until Decemp20@3 and lost $188,000 bef
income taxes during the quarter. This location enagbrofit of $66,000 for the quarter ended Marth2009, and we expect ongoing prc
in this location, of which there can be no assuganc

Rick’s Cabaret Las Vegas lost approximately $630,000$4n800,000 before income taxes for the three @ndnenths ended March &
2009, respectively. Due to the economy in Lasasegve expect to continue to lose money at thiatioc until the Las Vegas econo
improves, but we have made expense reductions adifioations to our marketing campaign in this lbea subsequent to March 31, 2(
and we have seen a large improvement in operaitiodigrch and April.

LIQUIDITY AND CAPITAL RESOURCES

Working Capital and Cash Flows

At March 31, 2009, we had working capital of $4,(B3! compared to $3,410,445 at September 30, 2008.

Net cash provided by continuing operations in tkkensonths ended March 31, 2009 was $3,425,743 cosdpsd $6,662,894 for the
months ended March 31, 2008. The decrease inprasided by operating activities was primarily doethe decrease in net income anc
payment of income taxes and accounts payable dthiangix months ended March 31, 2009.

We used $922,812 of cash in investing activitiesmfrcontinuing operations during the six months enitarch 31, 2009 compared
$19,844,808 during the six months ended March BD82 The decrease was principally due to the attgqpn of the new club in Miar
Gardens, Florida on November 30, 2007. Cash &8#2186 was used by financing activities during $hemonths ended March 31, 2(
compared to $14,542,855 cash provided during thensinths ended March 31, 2008. The decrease mpasided by financing activities
primarily the result of common stock issuancesatee capital for acquiring the new Florida clubNiovember 2007.

We require capital principally for construction azquisition of new clubs, renovation of older clargl investments in technology. We 1
also utilize capital to repurchase our common stxckart of our share repurchase program.

On April 29, 2009, the Company entered into a miodgliion to its two secured promissory notes with tbrmer owners of Tootsig'Cabare
in Miami Gardens, Florida, whereby the due datetfar $5 million of principal due and payable by @empany under each note
aggregate of $10 million) was extended by two ydassn November 2010 to November 2012. All othemte and conditions of tl
promissory notes remain the same. The Companyqusy issued these notes in November 2007 todhmdr owners of Tootsis’Cabare
in connection with a purchase agreement for thét adbaret.
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Put Options

As part of certain of our acquisition transactions,have entered into Lock-Up/Le&kit Agreements with the sellers pursuant to whicho!
after a contractual period after the closing dtte,seller shall have the right, but not the ohiarg to have us purchase from seller a ce
number of our shares of common stock issued itr#resactions in an amount and at a rate of not ithame a contractual number of the sh
per month (the “Monthly Shares”) calculated at mgper share equal to a contractual value peegfigalue of the Rick’'s Shares”jt our
election during any given month, we may either thgyMonthly Shares or, if we elect not to buy therithly Shares from the seller, then
seller shall sell the Monthly Shares in the openketa Any deficiency between the amount which th#es receives from the sale of

Monthly Shares and the value of the shares shatkl by us within three (3) business days of thie @f sale of the Monthly Shares dui
that particular month. Our obligation to purchase Monthly Shares from the Seller shall terminatd eease at such time as the sellel
received a contractual amount from the sale ofRio&’s Shares and any deficiency. Under the terfrth@ Lock-Up/LeakOut Agreement
the seller may not sell more than a contractualbremof our shares per 30-day period, regardlesghether the seller “Putghe shares to |
or sells them in the open market or otherwise.

During April and May 2009, we completed renegotiatof terms of certain of our long term debt argigmificant portion of outstanding f
options. Before the renegotiation, the maximumnigaion that could be owed if our stock were vala¢aero is $13,935,020 and is recol
in our consolidated balance sheet at March 31, 2809 emporary Equity. After the renegotiation sedquent to March 31, 2009,
maximum obligation that could be owed if our steodre valued at zero is $13,585,000. We considsrtype of financing transaction to
similar to interest-free debt. If we are requiredouy back any of these put options, the bagk transaction will be purely a balance s
transaction, affecting only Temporary Equity andc&holders’Equity and will have no income statement effectldvadng is a schedule
the annual obligation (after the renegotiation)waild have if our stock price remains in the futateéhe closing market price on May 4, 2
of $7.00 per share, of which there can be no assara

For the Year Ending September !

2009 $ 1,301,35;
2010 2,676,001
2011 3,140,001
2012 2,147,35.
2013 144 ,64¢
Total $ 9,409,35;

Each $1.00 per share movement of our stock priseahaggregate effect of $597,000 on the totagatibn.

Other Liquidity and Capital Resources

We have not established lines of credit or finagaither than the above mentioned notes payableoanéxisting debt. There can be
assurance that we will be able to obtain additidinaincing on reasonable terms in the future, dlatshould the need arise.

On September 29, 2008, our Board of Directors ai#éd us to repurchase up to $5,000,000 worth ofcommon stock. During the fis
year ending September 30, 2008, no shares werdgsed under this program. During the six monttgedrMarch 31, 2009, we purcha
162,041 shares of common stock in the open math@taes ranging from $2.64 to $5.95 per share.

We believe that the adult entertainment industandard of treating entertainers as independentraciots provides us with safe har

protection to preclude payroll tax assessment ffiar [years. We have prepared plans that we belighgrotect our profitability in the eve
that sexually oriented business industry is reqliineall states to convert dancers who are nowgaddent contractors into employees.
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The sexually oriented business industry is higlugnpetitive with respect to price, service and lmgtas well as the professionalism of
entertainment. Although management believes tieaang wellpositioned to compete successfully in the futurerdé can be no assurance
we will be able to maintain our high level of nameognition and prestige within the marketplace.

IMPACT OF INFLATION

We have not experienced a material overall impaxtfinflation in our operations during the pastesal years. To the extent permittec
competition, we have managed to recover increassts chrough price increases and may continue tsodoHowever, there can be
assurance that we will be able to do so in theréutu

SEASONALITY

Our nightclub operations are affected by seasawbfs. Historically, we have experienced reduesgnues from April through Septem
with the strongest operating results occurringrmy®ctober through March. Our experience to dadecates that there does not appear-
a seasonal fluctuation in our Internet activities.

GROWTH STRATEGY

We believe that our nightclub operations can camito grow organically and through careful entp imarkets and demographic segm
with high growth potential. Our growth strategy {8) to open new clubs after careful market redeafb) to acquire existing clubs
locations that are consistent with our growth armbine targets and which appear receptive to thealgslub formula we have developec
is the case with the acquisitions of the clubs usthh and Fort Worth, Texas, Miami Gardens, Flariéiladelphia, Pennsylvania, and
Vegas, Nevada, (c) to form joint ventures or paghips to reduce stadp and operating costs, with us contributing equntthe form of ou
brand name and management expertise, (d) to demelopciub concepts that are consistent with ouragament and marketing skills, (e
acquire real estate in connection with club opereti although some clubs may be in leased premiselpr (f) to enter into licensi
agreements in strategic locations, as is the c#tbelhe license agreement with Rick’s Buenos ABesiedad Anonima in Argentina.

During the six months ended March 31, 2008, we lmsed two night club operations and the remainBtg 4f another for $34,525,531. 1
acquisitions were funded as follow$18,986,000 in cash, $10,000,000 pursuant to twared promissory notes in the amount of $5,00(
each to the sellers, 230,000 shares of common ,s#¥€K.,711 in debt forgiveness, plus estimatedstretion costs of $125,000. For the
months ended March 31, 2009, the two acquired aligihs had total revenues of approximately $12,90D#&nd income before income ta
approximately $4,500,000.

We continue to evaluate opportunities to acquine nghtclubs and anticipate acquiring new locatitret fit our business model as we
done in the past.

We also expect to continue to grow our Internefipoenters. We plan to focus on highargin Internet activities that leverage our marig
skills while requiring a low level of statp cost and ongoing operating costs and refinetame our Internet sites for better positionin
organic search rankings amongst the major seamhdars. We will restructure affiliate programspimvide higher incentives to our curr
affiliates to better promote our Internet sitesjlevhctively seeking new affiliates to send trafficour Internet sites.

The acquisition of additional clubs and/or interoperations will require us to obtain additionabter issuance of our common stock

both. There can be no assurance that we will betalobtain additional financing on reasonablentein the future, if at all, should the ni
arise. An inability to obtain such additional fireéng could have an adverse effect on our growttesgy.
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Iltem 4T. Controls and Pr ocedur es.

Disclosure Controls and ProceduresManagement maintains "disclosure controls and mhaess,” as such term is defined in Rules 136
and 15di5(e) under the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 (fExchange Act"), that are designed to ensureittfiatmation required to t
disclosed by us in reports that we file or subrmter the Exchange Act is recorded, processed, suzedaand reported within the til
periods specified in Securities and Exchange Cosionisrules and forms, and that such informatioacisumulated and communicated to
management, including our Chief Executive Officed &Chief Financial Officer, as appropriate, to allbmely decisions regarding requi
disclosure. In designing and evaluating our disglescontrols and procedures, management recogrifzatd disclosure controls a
procedures, no matter how well conceived and opdratan provide only reasonable, not absolute,raisse that the objectives of

disclosure controls and procedures are met. Additlp, in designing disclosure controls and proceduour management necessarily
required to apply its judgment in evaluating thetdmenefit relationship of possible disclosure cortrahd procedures. The design of
disclosure controls and procedures also is basgdrnupon certain assumptions about the likelihobéuture events, and there can be
assurance that any design will succeed in achigténgiated goals under all potential future candg.

The Company's management evaluated, with the ppation of the Company's principal executive anth@pal financial officer, th
effectiveness of the Company's disclosure conamts procedures (as defined in Rules 13a-15(e) adel4(e) under the Securities Excha
Act of 1934, as amended (the "Exchange Act")), faSeptember 30, 2008. Based on this evaluationCitrapany's principal executive ¢
principal financial officer concluded that the Cceng's disclosure controls and procedures wereteféeas of March 31, 2009.

There were no changes in our internal control dwemncial reporting during our second quarter enlfedch 31, 2009, that have materi
affected or are reasonably likely to materiallyeaff our internal control over financial reporting.

PART II—OTHER INFORMATION
Item 1. L eg al Proceedings.

In 1997, the City of Houston passed a comprehenséwe ordinance regulating the location of and tbaduct within sexually orient
businesses (the “Ordinanceiyhich became the subject of litigation which aféeotur Sexually Oriented Business licenses in Hoystexas
After extensive litigation, the Trial Court in Hdos rendered its judgment in favor of the City afudton in January, 2007. After a leng
series of court battles, the Fifth Circuit CoufrtAgppeals ruled in favor of the City of Houston$®ptember 2007. Despite efforts for fur
appeal, the United States Supreme Court refushdanthe matter.

Additionally, on behalf of three of our club loaatis in Houston, we filed state court lawsuits segkudicial review of the results of t
amortization process contained within the Ordinangethe conclusion of the trial for this mattére Court ruled that the amortization aw:
were proper and requested that findings of fact @mtlusions of law be submitted to the Court ai a® a judgment in the case. A ¢
sought by the clubs during the appeal was denfeda result, we, as well as every other similailyagded sexually oriented business loc
within the incorporated area of Houston, Texas, ditteer cease providing nude or samide entertainment or develop alternate methao
operating. We have already taken steps to clotineentertainers in a manner to eliminate the needidenses and not to be subject to
Ordinance. Approximately 7.0% of our club opematforevenues and for the six months ended March &19 #vere in Houston, Texas ¢
those clubs lost approximately 0.9% of the Compsumycome before taxes for that period.
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OTHER LEGAL MATTERS

Beginning January 1, 2008, our Texas clubs becamed to a new state law requiring each club ttecbopay a $5 surcharge for every ¢
visitor. A lawsuit was filed by the Texas Ententaient Association, an organization to which weaaneember, alleging the fee amounts t
an unconstitutional tax. On March 28, 2008, aeSExstrict Court Judge in Travis County, Texas dulleat the new state law violates the |
Amendment to the United States Constitution antheésefore invalid. The judges order enjoined the State from collecting or asiagsthe
tax. The State has appealed the Couwstruling. In Texas, when cities or the State gietice of appeal, it supersedes and suspent
judgment, including the injunction. Therefore, jodgment of the District Court cannot be enforemdil the appeals are completed. Gi
the suspension of the judgment, the State has aptedllect the tax pending the outcome of its @bpdhe Texas Third Court of Appe
heard oral argument in this case on February 109 2@wever no decision is expected in the immediature. In the meantime, we have |
the tax for the first four calendar quarters unaetest and expensed the tax in the accompanyiagdial statements, except for two locat
in Dallas where the taxes have not been paid, leubike accruing and expensing the liability. Then@any 's Texas clubs have filec
separate lawsuit against the State to demand repa#yof the taxes. On April 3, 2009, the Company watified that the Texas legislat
processed a bill to replace the Patron Tax wit@% 1ax calculated on admission fees. The billessed the House and, as of May 5, 2
has gone to the Senate for confirmation. If pastedlCompanys current amount paid under protest would be appiiuture admission ti

and other Texas state tax liabilities.
Item 2. Un regis tered Sales of Equity Securitiesral Use of Proceeds.

During the three months ended March 31, 2009, wehmsed 113,841 shares of common stock in the imaeket at prices ranging from
$2.64 to $3.48 per share . Following is a sumnofugur purchases by month:

Period: @) (b) (c) (d)
Maximum
Number (or
Total Approximate
Number of Dollar
Shares (or Value) of
Units) Shares (or
Purchased a:  Units) that
Total Part of May Yet be
Number of Publicly Purchased
Shares (or Average Announced Under the
Units) Price Paid Plans or Plans or
Month Ending Purchased per Share Programs Programs
February 28, 2009 25,50C $ 3.27 25,50C $ 4,680,05
March 31, 2009 88,34. $ 3.01 88,34. $ 4,414,14
Total for six months ending March 31, 2009 162,04. $ 3.61 162,04: $ 4,414,14
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Iltem 6. E xhi bits.

Exhibit 31.1— Certification of Chief Executive Officer of Rick'Cabaret International, Inc. required by Rule 43a}(1) or Rule 15d 44(a
of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as adopteduant to Section 302 of the Sarbanes-Oxley A2062.

Exhibit 31.2— Certification of Chief Financial Officer of Rick'Cabaret International, Inc. required by Rule 434 (1) or Rule 15d 44(a) o
the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as adoptesugunt to Section 302 of the Sarbanes-Oxley AcD6P2

Exhibit 32.1-- Certification of Chief Executive Officer of RitkCabaret International, Inc. pursuant to Sec@i6 of the Sarbanddxley Act
of 2002 and Section 1350 of 18 U.S.C. 63.

Exhibit 32.2-- Certification of Chief Financial Officer of Ritk Cabaret International, Inc. pursuant to Sec866 of the Sarbangdxley Act
of 2002 and Section 1350 of 18 U.S.C. 63.
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S| GNA TURES

Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities &xgh Act of 1934, the registrant has duly causisdréport to be signed on its behalf by the
undersigned hereunto duly authorized.

RICK'S CABARET INTERNATIONAL, INC.

Date: May 12, 200 By: /s/ Eric S. Langa
Eric S. Langar
Chief Executive Officer and Preside

Date: May 12, 200 By: /s/ Phillip K. Marshall
Phillip K. Marshall
Chief Financial Officer and Principal Accountingfioér
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EXHIBIT 31.1
CERTIFICATION PURSUANT TO SECTION 302 OF THE
SARBANES-OXLEY ACT OF 2002
I, Eric S. Langan, Chief Executive Officer and Rdeat of Rick’s Cabaret International, Inc., certifiat:
1. | have reviewed this quarterly report on Forn-Q of Rick's Cabaret International, In

2. Based on my knowledge, this report does not coragajnuntrue statement of a material fact or omitade a material fact necess
to make the statements made, in light of the cistances under which such statements were madmislegding with respect to t
period covered by this repo

3. Based on my knowledge, the financial statements,atimer financial information included in this repdairly present in all materi
respects the financial condition, results of operatand cash flows of the issuer as of, and far periods presented in this repi

4. The issuers other certifying officer and | are responsible &stablishing and maintaining disclosure contamsl procedures (
defined in Exchange Act Rules -15(e) and 15-15(e)) for the issuer and hay

(a) Designed such disclosure controls and procsdurecaused such disclosure controls and procedarbe designed under
supervision, to ensure that material informatidatheg to the issuer, including its consolidatethsdiaries, is made known to us
others within those entities, particularly durihg toeriod in which this report is being prepared;

(b) Designed such internal control over financigbarting, or caused such internal control overrfaial reporting to be design
under my supervision, to provide reasonable assareggarding the reliability of financial reportiagd the preparation of financ
statements for external purposes in accordancegeitlerally accepted accounting principles;

(c) Evaluated the effectiveness of the issuerdalisire controls and procedures and presentedsimgport our conclusions about
effectiveness of the disclosure controls and proes] as of the end of the period covered by #y®nt based on such evaluat
and

(d) Disclosed in this report any change in thea@ssuinternal control over financial reporting tlatcurred during the issuer's ir
recent fiscal year that has materially affectedisoreasonably likely to materially affect, theusss internal control over financ
reporting; and

5. The issues other certifying officer and | have disclosedsdxh on our most recent evaluation of internal abraver financie
reporting, to the issuer's independent registetddipaccounting firm and the audit committee of thsuer's board of directors
persons performing the equivalent functiot

(@) All significant deficiencies and material weakses in the design or operation of internal comiver financial reporting whic
are reasonably likely to adversely affect the issusbility to record, process, summarize and refpmancial information; and

(b) Any fraud, whether or not material, that invedvmanagement or other employees who have a s@mifrole in the issue
internal control over financial reporting.

Date: May 12, 200 By: /s/ Eric S. Langa
Eric S. Langar
Chief Executive Officer and Preside




EXHIBIT 31.2
CERTIFICATION PURSUANT TO SECTION 302 OF THE
SARBANES-OXLEY ACT OF 2002
I, Phillip K. Marshall, Chief Financial Officer dRick’s Cabaret International, Inc., certify that:
1. | have reviewed this quarterly report on Forn-Q of Rick's Cabaret International, In

2. Based on my knowledge, this report does not coragajnuntrue statement of a material fact or omitade a material fact necess
to make the statements made, in light of the cistances under which such statements were madmislegding with respect to t
period covered by this repo

3. Based on my knowledge, the financial statements,atimer financial information included in this repdairly present in all materi
respects the financial condition, results of operatand cash flows of the issuer as of, and far periods presented in this repi

4. The issuers other certifying officer and | are responsible &stablishing and maintaining disclosure contamsl procedures (
defined in Exchange Act Rules -15(e) and 15-15(e)) for the issuer and hay

(a) Designed such disclosure controls and procsdurecaused such disclosure controls and procedarbe designed under
supervision, to ensure that material informatidatheg to the issuer, including its consolidatethsdiaries, is made known to us
others within those entities, particularly durihg toeriod in which this report is being prepared;

(b) Designed such internal control over financigbarting, or caused such internal control overrfaial reporting to be design
under my supervision, to provide reasonable assareggarding the reliability of financial reportiagd the preparation of financ
statements for external purposes in accordancegeitlerally accepted accounting principles;

(c) Evaluated the effectiveness of the issuerdalisire controls and procedures and presentedsimgport our conclusions about
effectiveness of the disclosure controls and proes] as of the end of the period covered by #y®nt based on such evaluat
and

(d) Disclosed in this report any change in thea@ssuinternal control over financial reporting tlatcurred during the issuer's ir
recent fiscal year that has materially affectedisoreasonably likely to materially affect, theusss internal control over financ
reporting; and

5. The issues other certifying officer and | have disclosedsdxh on our most recent evaluation of internal abraver financie
reporting, to the issuer's independent registetddipaccounting firm and the audit committee of thsuer's board of directors
persons performing the equivalent functiot

(@) All significant deficiencies and material weakses in the design or operation of internal comiver financial reporting whic
are reasonably likely to adversely affect the issusbility to record, process, summarize and refpmancial information; and

(b) Any fraud, whether or not material, that invedvmanagement or other employees who have a s@mifrole in the issue
internal control over financial reporting.

Date: May 12, 200 By: /s/ Phillip K. Marshal
Phillip K. Marshall
Chief Financial Officer and Principal Accountingfioér




EXHIBIT 32.1

CERTIFICATION PURSUANT TO RULE 13a-14(b) OR
RULE 15d-14(b) and 18 U.S.C. §1350,
AS ADOPTED PURSUANT TO
SECTION 906 OF THE SARBANES-OXLEY ACT OF 2002

In connection with the quarterly report of Rick'aléaret International, Inc. (the "Company") on FA®AQ for the quarter ended March 31,
2009 as filed with the Securities and Exchange C@sion on the date hereof (the "Report"), |, Erid.8ngan, Chief Executive Officer and
President of the Company, certify, pursuant to 18.0. 81350, as adopted pursuant to Section 90&dbarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002, that:

(1) The Report fully complies with thejuérements of Section 13(a) or 15(d) of the SeimsriExchange Act of 1934; and
(2 The information contained in the Repfirly presents, in all material respects, tliramcial condition and results

operations of the Company.

Date: May 12, 200 By: /s/ Eric S. Langa
Eric S. Langar
Chief Executive Officer and Preside




EXHIBIT 32.2

CERTIFICATION PURSUANT TO RULE 13a-14(b) OR
RULE 15d-14(b) and 18 U.S.C. §1350,
AS ADOPTED PURSUANT TO
SECTION 906 OF THE SARBANES-OXLEY ACT OF 2002

In connection with the quarterly report of Rick'aléaret International, Inc. (the "Company") on FA®AQ for the quarter ended March 31,
2009 as filed with the Securities and Exchange C@sion on the date hereof (the "Report"), |, Phili. Marshall, Chief Financial Officer «
the Company, certify, pursuant to 18 U.S.C. 8§1380adopted pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarb@rkesy- Act of 2002, that:

(1) The Report fully complies with thejuérements of Section 13(a) or 15(d) of the SeimsriExchange Act of 1934; and
(2 The information contained in the Repfirly presents, in all material respects, tliramcial condition and results

operations of the Company.

Date: May 12, 200 By: /s/ Phillip K. Marshal
Phillip K. Marshall
Chief Financial Officer and Principal Accountingfi©er




